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ABOUT SIBANYE’S REPORTS 

THE 2015 SUITE OF REPORTS 

COVERS THE FINANCIAL YEAR 

from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015. 

Sibanye Gold Limited (Sibanye or the Group) is listed on the Main Board of the JSE Limited (JSE) (ordinary shares) and on the New York 
Stock Exchange (NYSE) American Depositary Receipts (ADRs). Sibanye reports in compliance with the JSE Listing Requirements, the 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) (issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)), the South African 
Institute of Chartered Accountants (SAICA) Financial Reporting Guides (issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council), the South 
African Companies Act, 2008 (Act No 71 of 2008) (the Companies Act) and the Code of and Report on Governance Principles for South 
Africa (King III). Sibanye’s Mineral Resources and Mineral Reserves are reported in terms of the South African Code for Reporting of 
Exploration Results, Mineral Resources and Mineral Reserves (SAMREC). 

This report should be read in conjunction with the Integrated Annual Report 2015, Annual Financial Report 2015, Summarised Report 
2015 and Notice of Annual General Meeting and the Mineral Resources and Mineral Reserves Report 2015 which can be found on the 
Company’s website www.sibanyegold.co.za. 

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS 
Certain statements in this document constitute “forward looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the US Securities Act of 
1933 and Section 21E of the US Securities Exchange Act of 1934. These forward looking statements, including, among others, those relating 
to Sibanye’s future business prospects, revenues and income, wherever they may occur in this document and the exhibits to this document, 
are necessarily estimates reflecting the best judgement of the senior management and directors of Sibanye, and involve a number of known 
and unknown risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results, performance or achievements of the Group to differ materially from those 
suggested by the forward looking statements. As a consequence, these forward looking statements should be considered in light of various 
important factors, including those set forth in this document. Important factors that could cause the actual results to differ materially from 
estimates or projections contained in the forward looking statements include, without limitation, economic, business, political and social 
conditions in South Africa, Zimbabwe and elsewhere; changes in assumptions underlying Sibanye’s estimation of its current Mineral Reserves 
and Resources; the ability to achieve anticipated efficiencies and other cost savings in connection with past and future acquisitions, as well as 
at existing operations; the ability of Sibanye to successfully integrate acquired businesses and operations (whether in the gold mining 
business or otherwise) into its existing business; the success of Sibanye’s business strategy, exploration and development activities; the 
ability of Sibanye to comply with requirements that it operate in a sustainable manner; changes in the market price of gold, platinum group 
metals (PGMs)  and/or uranium; the occurrence of hazards associated with underground and surface gold, PGMs and uranium mining; the 
occurrence of labour disruptions and industrial action; the availability, terms and deployment of capital or credit; changes in relevant 
government regulations, particularly environmental tax, health and safety regulations and new legislation affecting water, mining, mineral 
rights and business ownership, including any interpretations thereof which may be subject to dispute; the outcome and consequence of any 
potential or pending litigation or regulatory proceedings or other environmental, health and safety issues; power disruptions, constraints and 
cost increases; supply chain shortages and increases in the price of production inputs; fluctuations in exchange rates, currency 
devaluations, inflation and other macro-economic monetary policies; the occurrence of temporary stoppages of mines for safety incidents and 
unplanned maintenance; Sibanye’s ability to hire and retain senior management or sufficient technically skilled employees, as well as its ability 
to attract sufficient representation of historically disadvantaged South Africans’ in its management positions; failure of Sibanye’s information 
technology and communications systems; the adequacy of Sibanye’s insurance coverage; any social unrest, sickness or natural or man-made 
disaster at informal settlements in the vicinity of some of Sibanye’s operations; and the impact of HIV, tuberculosis and other contagious 
diseases.  These forward looking statements speak only as of the date of this document. The Group undertakes no obligation to update 
publicly or release any revisions to these forward looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date of this document or to 
reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. 
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The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of Sibanye Gold Limited’s (Sibanye or Company) separate 

financial statements, comprising the company statement of financial position at 31 December 2015, and the company income 

statement and the company statements of changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes to the company 

financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies, and other explanatory notes, in accordance with 

IFRS, the SAICA Financial Reporting Guides, as issued by the Accounting Practices Committee, and Financial Reporting 

Pronouncements as issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council, as well as the requirements of the Companies Act and the 

JSE Listings Requirements. 

In addition, the directors are responsible for preparing the directors’ report. 

The directors consider that, in preparing the company financial statements, they have used the most appropriate accounting policies, 

consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, and that all IFRS standards that they 

consider to be applicable have been complied with for the financial year ended 31 December 2015. The directors are satisfied that 

the information contained in the company financial statements fairly presents the results of operations for the year and the financial 

position of the Company at year end. 

The directors have responsibility for ensuring that accounting records are kept. The accounting records should disclose with 

reasonable accuracy the financial position of the Company to enable the directors to ensure that the company financial statements 

comply with the relevant legislation. 

The Company operated in a well-established control environment, which is well documented and regularly reviewed. This 

incorporates risk management and internal control procedures, which are designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are 

safeguarded and the material risks facing the business are being controlled. 

The directors have made an assessment of the ability of the Company to continue as going concern and have no reason to believe 

that Sibanye will not be a going concern in the year ahead. 

Sibanye has adopted a Code of Ethics, which applies to all directors and employees, is available on Sibanye’s website.  

The Company’s external auditors, KPMG Inc audited the company financial statements. For their report, see Accountability–

Independent auditor’s report. 

The Company’s annual financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and are signed on its behalf by: 

NEAL FRONEMAN 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

CHARL KEYTER 

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

18 March 2016 

 

 

COMPANY SECRETARY'S CONFIRMATION 

In terms of section 88(2)(e) of the Companies Act 71 of 2008, as amended, I certify that the Company has lodged with the 
Companies and Intellectual Property Commission all such returns as are required to be lodged by a public company in terms of the 
Companies Act, and that all such returns are true, correct and up to date. 

CAIN FARREL 

COMPANY SECRETARY 

18 March 2016 
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The Audit Committee has formal terms of reference which are updated on an annual basis. The Board is satisfied that the Audit 

Committee has complied with these terms, and with its legal and regulatory responsibilities as set out in the Companies Act, King III 

and the JSE Listings Requirements. 

The Audit Committee consisted of four independent non-executive directors throughout the financial year. 

The Board believes that the members collectively possess the knowledge and experience to supervise Sibanye’s financial 

management, internal and external auditors, the quality of Sibanye’s financial controls, the preparation and evaluation of Sibanye’s 

company financial statements and Sibanye’s financial reporting. 

The Board has established and maintains internal controls and procedures, which are reviewed on a regular basis. These are 

designed to manage the risk of business failures and to provide reasonable assurance against such failures. However, this is not a 

guarantee that such risks are eliminated. 

It is the duty of the Audit Committee, inter alia, to monitor and review:  

 the effectiveness of the internal audit function; findings and the appointment of external auditors; reports of both internal and 

external auditors; 

 evaluation of the performance of the CFO; 

 the governance of information technology (IT) and the effectiveness of the Company’s information systems; 

 interim and annual financial and operating reports, the consolidated annual financial statements, separate company financial 

statements and all other widely distributed financial documents; 

 the Form 20-F filing with the SEC; 

 accounting policies of the Company and proposed revisions; 

 compliance with applicable legislation, requirements of appropriate regulatory authorities and the Company’s Code of Ethics; 

 the integrity of the annual financial report and associated reports (by ensuring that its content is reliable and recommending it 

to the Board for approval); and 

 policies and procedures for preventing and detecting fraud. 

Internal and external auditors have unrestricted access to the Audit Committee, the Audit Committee Chairman and the Chairman of 

the Board, ensuring that auditors are able to maintain their independence. Both the internal and external auditors report at Audit 

Committee meetings. The Audit Committee also meets with both internal and external auditors separately without other invitees 

being present. Management may attend the Audit Committee meetings by invitation. 

The Audit Committee is responsible for recommending the appointment of an independent firm of external auditors to the Board who 

will in turn recommend the appointment to the shareholders. 

The Audit Committee is also responsible for determining that the designated appointee has the necessary independence, 

experience, qualifications and skills, and that audit and other fees are reviewed and approved. 

The Audit Committee has reviewed and assessed the independence of the external auditor, and has confirmed in writing that the 

criteria for independence, as set out in the rules of the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors and international bodies, have 

been followed. The Audit Committee is satisfied that KPMG Inc is independent of the Company. The Audit Committee determines the 

nature and extent of non-audit services that the firm can provide and pre-approves all permitted non-audit assignments by the 

Company’s independent auditor. 

The Audit Committee approves the annual audit plan presented by the external auditors and monitors progress against the plan. The 

audit plan provides the Audit Committee with the necessary assurance on risk management, internal control environments and IT 

governance. The Audit Committee recommends that KPMG Inc is reappointed for the 2016 financial year with Jacques Erasmus as 

the Company audit engagement partner. 

The Audit Committee has satisfied itself that both KPMG Inc and Jacques Erasmus are accredited in terms of the JSE Listings 

Requirements. 

The internal control systems of the Company are monitored by internal auditors who report their findings and recommendations to 

the Audit Committee and to senior management. The Audit Committee determines the purpose, authority and responsibility of the 

internal audit function (Internal Audit) in an Internal Audit Charter. The internal audit function is headed by the Vice President: Internal 

Audit, who may be appointed or dismissed by the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is satisfied that the incumbent Vice 

President: Internal Audit has the requisite skills and experience and that she is supported by a sufficient staff complement with 

appropriate skills and training. 

Sibanye’s Internal Audit operates in accordance with the International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing as 

prescribed by the Institute of Internal Auditors. The internal audit activities carried out during the year were identified through a 

combination of the Sibanye Risk Management framework and the risk-based methodologies adopted by Internal Audit. The Audit 

Committee approves the annual internal audit assurance plan presented by Internal Audit and monitors progress against the plan. 
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Internal Audit reports deficiencies to the Audit Committee every quarter together with recommended remedial actions, which are then 

followed up. Internal Audit provided the Audit Committee with a written report, which assessed as adequate the internal controls over 

financial reporting, IT governance and the risk management process during 2015. 

The Audit Committee is responsible for IT governance on behalf of the Board and reviews the report of the IT Senior Manager at 

each meeting. 

The Audit Committee evaluated the expertise and performance of the CFO during 2015. It is satisfied that he has the appropriate 

expertise and experience to carry out his duties as the CFO of the Company, and is supported by qualified and competent senior 

staff. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE STATEMENT  

Based on information from, and discussions with, management and external auditors, the Audit Committee has no reason to believe 

that there were any material breakdowns in the design and operating effectiveness of internal financial controls during the year and 

that the financial records may be relied upon as the basis for preparation of the Company financial statements. 

The Audit Committee has considered and discussed these Company financial statements with both management and the external 

auditors. 

During this process, the Audit Committee: 

 evaluated significant judgements and reporting decisions;  

 determined that the going-concern basis of reporting is appropriate; 

 evaluated the material factors and risks that could impact on the annual financial report and associated reports; 

 evaluated the completeness of the financial and sustainability discussion and disclosures; and 

 discussed the treatment of significant and unusual transactions with management and the external auditors. 

The Audit Committee considers that the Company financial report complies in all material respects with the statutory requirements of 

the various regulations governing disclosure and reporting of the company annual financial statements and that the company 

financial statements comply in all material respects with IFRS, the SAICA Financial Reporting Guides issued by the Accounting 

Practices Committee and Financial Reporting Pronouncements issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council, as well as the 

requirements of the Companies Act and the JSE Listings Requirements. The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that 

the Company financial statements be adopted and approved by the Board. 

Keith Rayner CA(SA) 

Chairman: Audit Committee 

18 March 2016 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 

The directors have pleasure in submitting this report and the Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015. 

PROFILE 

BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY 

Sibanye is a producer of gold and a major holder of gold resources and reserves in South Africa. The Company is primarily involved 

in underground and surface gold-mining and related activities, including extraction, and processing. All of the Company’s operations 

are located in South Africa. At 31 December 2015, Sibanye held gold mineral reserves of 23.2Moz (2014: 21.9Moz) and resources of 

61.6Moz (2014: 66.1Moz). 

FINANCIAL RESULTS 

The information on the financial position of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2015 is set out in the Company financial 

statements including the notes. The income statement for the Company shows a profit of R1,761 million for the year ended 

31 December 2015 compared with R2,112 million in 2014. 

DIRECTORATE 

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD 

On 12 May 2015, Jiyu Yuan was appointed as a non-executive director. He is eligible and available for election. On 21 May 2015, 

Zola Skweyiya resigned as a non-executive director.  

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS 

As of the date of this report, none of the directors, officers or major shareholders of Sibanye or, to the knowledge of Sibanye’s 

management, their families, had any interest, direct or indirect, in any transaction during the last fiscal year or in any proposed 

transaction which has affected or will materially affect Sibanye or its investment interests or subsidiaries, other than as stated 

elsewhere in the annual financial report. None of the directors or officers of Sibanye or any associate of such director or officer is 

currently or has been at any time during the past fiscal year materially indebted to Sibanye. 

For related party information, see Company financial statements–Notes to the company financial statements–Note 31.: Related-party 

transactions. 

ROTATION OF DIRECTORS 

Directors retiring in terms of the Company’s MOI are Barry Davison, Neal Froneman, Nkosemntu Nika, Susan van der Merwe and 

Jiyu Yuan. 

All the directors are eligible and offer themselves for re-election. 

The directors of various subsidiaries of the Company comprise some of the executive officers and one of the executive directors, 

where appropriate. 

FINANCIAL AFFAIRS 

DIVIDEND POLICY 

Sibanye‘s dividend policy is to return at least 25% to 35% of normalised earnings to shareholders and after due consideration of 

future requirements the dividend may be increased beyond these levels. Normalised earnings are defined as profit for the year 

excluding gains and losses on foreign exchange differences and financial instruments, non-recurring items, and share of results of 

equity-accounted investees after tax. 

For the year under review, the Company paid a total dividend of R658 million compared with R1,005 million in 2014. 

On 24 February 2016 a final dividend in respect of the six months ended 31 December 2015 of 90 SA cents per share was approved 

by the Board, resulting in a total dividend of 100 SA cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2015. 

BORROWING POWERS 

In terms of Clause 4 of the Company’s MOI, the borrowing powers of the Company are unlimited. As at 31 December 2015, the 

borrowings of the Company was R1,962 million (2014: R1,980 million). 
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Sibanye is subject to financial and other covenants and restrictions under its credit facilities from time to time. Such covenants may 

include restrictions on Sibanye incurring additional financial indebtedness and obligations to maintain certain financial covenant ratios 

for as long as any amount is outstanding under such facilities. 

SIGNIFICANT ANNOUNCEMENTS 

2 February 2015: Sibanye advised shareholders that the Company had successfully completed the Cooke 4 Section 189 
consultation process and that an agreement was reached with employees and organised labour on 12 November 2014.  

6 February 2015: Sibanye reported that on 5 February 2015, a conflict between members of the Association of Mineworkers and 
Construction Union (AMCU) and the National Union of Mineworkers (NUM) at Beatrix resulted in injuries to 9 employees. 

10 February 2015: Sibanye advised that it had reached formal agreement with all representative unions at Beatrix, resulting in 
commitment from the unions to ensuring peaceful co-existence and hence a safe working environment. 

11 March 2015: Sibanye confirmed the arrest of 11 employees following investigation of the inter-union conflict at Beatrix. The South 
African Police Service and Sibanye Gold Protection Services have concluded a joint investigation into the inter-union conflict at 
Beatrix which took place on 5 February 2015. 

20 April 2015: Sibanye reports that the Competition Tribunal has ordered that the Notice of Apparent Breach issued against Sibanye 
by the Competition Commission on 11 November 2014 be set aside. 

29 April 2015: Sibanye informed shareholders that the Company has been released as guarantor by the noteholders of Gold Fields 
Limited’s US$1 billion bond issued 30 September 2010 by a subsidiary of Gold Fields Limited. 

31 August 2015: Sibanye announced the successful conclusion of a US$300 million revolving credit facility which was concluded on 
20 August 2015. 

2 September 2015: Sibanye confirmed that during the day shift on 1 September 2015, approximately 1,200 of its employees elected 
to remain underground at its Masakhane shaft, Driefontein Operations. 

9 September 2015: Sibanye announced the proposed acquisition of the Rustenburg Mining and Concentrating Operations from 

Anglo American Platinum for an upfront consideration of R1.5 billion in cash or shares and a deferred consideration equal to 35% of 

the distributable free cash flows generated by the Rustenburg Operations over a six year period, subject to a minimum nominal 

payment of R3 billion. 

2 October 2015: Sibanye advised shareholders that NUM, Solidarity and UASA have accepted the offers made by fellow gold 
producers AngloGold Ashanti and Harmony. AMCU had unfortunately rejected all of the companies’ offers and obtained a certificate 
of non-resolution from the CCMA. 

6 October 2015: Sibanye announced the proposed acquisition of Aquarius by way of a cash offer of US$0.195 per share (R2.66 per 

share) (translated using the rate at 5 October 2015 of R13.63/US$) valuing Aquarius at US$294 million (R4 billion) for the entire 

issued share capital of Aquarius. 

30 November 2015: Sibanye provided shareholders with an update on progress towards finalising the acquisitions of the 

Rustenburg Operations and Aquarius, which were announced on 9 September 2015 and 6 October 2015, respectively. 

GOING CONCERN 

The Company financial statements have been prepared using appropriate accounting policies, supported by reasonable judgements 

and estimates. The directors believe that the Company has adequate resources to continue as a going concern for the foreseeable 

future. 

For further details on the Company’s liquidity position at 31 December 2015, see Company financial statements–Notes to the 

company financial statements–Note 33: Liquidity. 

LITIGATION 

The Company provides occupational healthcare services to its employees through its existing facilities at the various operations. 
There is a risk that the cost of providing such services could increase in future, depending upon changes in the nature of underlying 
legislation and the profile of employees. Any such increased cost cannot be quantified. The costs are however also mitigated by 
advances in technology relating to occupational health. The Company is monitoring developments in this regard. 

The principal health risks associated with Sibanye's mining operations in South Africa arise from occupational exposure to silica dust, 
noise, heat and certain hazardous chemicals. The most significant occupational diseases affecting Sibanye's workforce include lung 
diseases (such as silicosis, tuberculosis, a combination of the two and chronic obstructive airways disease, as well as noise induced 
hearing loss). The Occupational Diseases in Mines and Works Act, 78 of 1973, (ODMWA), governs the compensation paid to mining 
employees who contract certain illnesses, such as silicosis. The South African Constitutional Court has ruled that a claim for 
compensation under ODMWA does not prevent an employee from seeking compensation from its employer in a civil action under 
common law (either as individuals or as a class). While issues, such as negligence and causation, need to be proved on a case-by-
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case basis, it is possible that such ruling could expose Sibanye to individual or class action claims related to occupational hazards 
and diseases (including silicosis). If Sibanye were to face a significant number of such claims and the claims were suitably 
established against it, the payments of compensation for the claims could have a material adverse effect on Sibanye’s results of 
operations and financial position. In addition, Sibanye may incur significant additional costs arising out of these issues, including 
costs relating to the payment of fees, levies or other contributions in respect of compensatory or other funds established (if any), and 
expenditures arising out of its efforts to resolve any outstanding claims or other potential action. 

On 21 August 2012, a court application was served on a group of respondents that included Sibanye (the August Respondents). On 
21 December 2012, a further court application was issued and was formally served on a number of respondents, including Sibanye 
(the December Respondents) and, again on 10 January 2013, both the August Respondents and the December Respondents 
(together the Respondents), on behalf of current and former mine workers, and their dependants, of, amongst others, Sibanye, and 
who allegedly contracted silicosis and/or other occupational lung diseases (OLD) (the Class). The court application of 
21 August 2012 and 21 December 2012 are together referred to below as the Applications. 

Sibanye filed a notice of its intention to oppose the Applications and its attorneys to defend the claims. 

These Applications requested that the court, 

1. As a first phase, certify a class action to be instituted by the applicants on behalf of the Class, as defined. 

2. As a second phase to possibly split the Class, as defined into smaller classes based on common legal and factual issues. The 
Respondents are of the view that the definition of the class in the first phase and the proposed process involving the second 
phase are contrary to South African legal precedent. 

3. In the last phase, bring an action wherein they will attempt to hold the Respondents liable for silicosis and other OLD and 
resultant consequences.  

The Applications do not identify the number of claims that may be instituted against the Respondents or the quantum of damages 
that the applicants may seek. 

The Applications were heard during the weeks of 12 and 19 October 2015. Judgement is expected to be handed down during the 
first quarter of 2016. Anglo American South Africa, AngloGold Ashanti, Gold Fields, Harmony and Sibanye announced in 
November 2014 that they have formed a gold mining industry working group to address issues relating to the compensation and 
medical care for OLD in the gold mining industry in South Africa. Essentially, the companies are seeking a comprehensive and 
sustainable solution which deals both with the legacy compensation issues and future legal frameworks and which, while being fair to 
employees, also ensures the future sustainability of companies in the industry. 

The companies have engaged all stakeholders on these matters, including government, organised labour, other mining companies 
and legal representatives of claimants who have filed legal suits against the companies. These legal proceedings are being 
defended. 

At this stage, Sibanye can neither quantify the potential liability from the action as the Application is currently for certification of a 
class (and possibly, subsequent classes) nor can the length of time until finalisation be estimated. 

ADMINISTRATION 

Cain Farrel was appointed Company Secretary of Sibanye with effect from 1 January 2013. 

With effect from 11 February 2013, Computershare Investor Services Proprietary Limited became the Company’s South African 

transfer secretaries and Capita Asset Services became the United Kingdom registrars of the Company. 

AUDITORS 

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that KPMG Inc continues in office in accordance with section 90(1) of the 

Companies Act and in terms of the JSE Listings Requirements. Jacques Erasmus is KPMG’s lead audit partner, accredited by the 

JSE, for Sibanye. 

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 

For details of major subsidiary companies in which the Company has a direct or indirect interest, see Company financial statements–

Notes to the company financial statements–Note 11: Investment in subsidiaries. 
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AUTHORISED AND ISSUED 

At the shareholder’s meeting held on 21 November 2012 (Gold Fields being the sole shareholder) the Company’s authorised and 
issued share capital each consisting of 1,000 par value shares of R1.00 each was converted into 1,000 ordinary shares with no par 
value. The authorised share capital was increased by the creation of a further 999,999,000 ordinary no par value shares, each 
ranking pari passu in all respects with the existing no par value shares in the Company’s share capital so as to result in the 
Company’s authorised share capital being 1,000,000,000 ordinary no par value shares. As at 31 December 2012 the authorised 
share capital was 1,000,000,000 ordinary no par value shares and the issued share capital was 1,000 ordinary no par value shares. 

On 1 February 2013, prior to the unbundling of Sibanye from Gold Fields on 18 February 2013, Gold Fields subscribed for a further 
731,647,614 shares in Sibanye for R17,246 million.  

As of 31 December 2014 the authorised share capital was 1,000,000,000 ordinary no par value shares and issued share capital was 
898,840,196 ordinary no par value shares. 

During 2015, the Company issued 17,300,356 shares as part of the SGL Share Plan. 

As at 31 December 2015, the authorised share capital was 2,000,000,000 ordinary no par value shares and the issued and listed 
share capital was 916,140,552 ordinary no par value shares. 

In terms of the general authority granted at the shareholder’s meeting on 12 May 2015, the authorised but unissued ordinary share 
capital of the Company representing not more than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2014, after 
setting aside so many ordinary shares as may be required to be allotted and issued pursuant to the share incentive scheme, was 
placed under the control of the directors. 

This authority expires at the next AGM where shareholders will be asked to place under the control of the directors the authorised but 
unissued ordinary share capital of the Company representing not more than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company from time 
to time.  

REPURCHASE OF SHARES 

The Company has not exercised the general authority granted to buy back shares from its issued ordinary share capital granted at 
the shareholders’ meeting held on 12 May 2015. 

At the next AGM, shareholders will be asked to approve the general authority for the acquisition by the Company, or a subsidiary of 

the Company, of its own shares. 
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SIBANYE GOLD LIMITED 

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
We have audited the company financial statements of Sibanye Gold Limited, which comprise the company statement of financial 

position at 31 December 2015, and the company income statement, company statement of changes in equity and company 

statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes to the company financial statements which include a summary of 

significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, as set out on pages 19 to 61, and the information in the Remuneration 

report as set out on pages 11 to 18. 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

The company’s directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa, and for such internal 
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY  

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 

with International Standards on Auditing.  Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant 

to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 

in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  An audit 

also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made 

by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.  

OPINION  

In our opinion, these company financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the separate financial position of Sibanye 

Gold Limited at 31 December 2015, and its seperate financial performance and separate cash flows for the year then ended in 

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa. 

OTHER REPORTS REQUIRED BY THE COMPANIES ACT  

As part of our audit of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015, we have read the Directors’ report, the Report 

of the Audit Committee and the Company secretary’s confirmation for the purpose of identifying whether there are material 

inconsistencies between these reports and the audited financial statements. These reports are the responsibility of the respective 

preparers. Based on reading these reports we have not identified material inconsistencies between these reports and the audited 

financial statements. However, we have not audited these reports and accordingly do not express an opinion on these reports. 

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 

In terms of the IRBA Rule published in Government Gazette Number 39475 dated 4 December 2015, we report that KPMG Inc. 

has been the auditor of Sibanye Gold Limited for six years. 

 

KPMG Inc. 

Per Jacques Erasmus 85 Empire Road 

Chartered Accountant (SA) Parktown 

Registered Auditor 2193 

Director Gauteng 

18 March 2016 South Africa 
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It is the Remuneration Committee’s role and responsibility to ensure that the remuneration arrangements for executive directors and 

senior executives offer an incentive to enhance the Group’s performance and deliver responsibly on the Group’s strategy. The 

Remuneration Committee also needs to ensure that the actual rewards received by the executive directors are proportionate to levels 

of performance achieved and the returns received by shareholders. The Remuneration Committee gives full consideration to the 

Group’s priorities, its performance and shareholder interests. 

Sibanye believes it is important that the structure and level of remuneration and reward are reasonably consistent across the Group 

and appropriately competitive within the operating market. Our remuneration structures are benchmarked against our peers and we 

operate comprehensive performance-based reward systems to retain and also attract the best people. 

All information disclosed in this Remuneration Report for the year ended 31 December 2015 was in compliance with remuneration 

policies set by the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance measures for the Group’s 

incentive plans during 2015 to reposition alignment with the Group strategy. 

2015 REMUNERATION POLICY 

The key principles of Sibanye’s remuneration policy are to: 

 support the execution of the Group’s business strategy; 

 provide competitive rewards to attract, motivate and retain highly skilled executives and staff; 

 motivate and reinforce individual, team and business performance; and 

 ensure Sibanye’s remuneration arrangements are reasonably equitable and facilitate the deployment of people across the 

Group’s operations. 

At Sibanye, one of the critical drivers of performance is the Total Reward strategy. The Total Reward strategy is an integral part of 

the people strategy and promotes a holistic approach which combines all elements of cash remuneration (guaranteed and 

performance based) with other elements of reward (shares as well as non-financial motivators) to attract, retain and motivate 

employees. The principle of performance-based rewards is one of the cornerstones of the reward strategy. The reward strategy is 

also underpinned by sound remuneration management and governance principles which are promoted across Sibanye in order to 

ensure the consistent application of the strategy and its policies. 

The Group’s reward strategy includes the following elements: 

 guaranteed remuneration; 

 benefits; 

 cash bonus and (short term incentives) bonus shares; and 

 performance shares (long term incentives). 

REMUNERATION MIX 

Sibanye’s remuneration model and practices are aimed at attracting and retaining motivated, high-calibre employees and aligning 

their interests with the shareholders. Such alignment is achieved through an appropriate mix of guaranteed and performance-based 

remuneration (variable pay), which provides for differentiation between high, average and low performers. The mix of guaranteed pay 

and variable pay differs according to the level of the employee within the Group. Typically, more senior employees’ remuneration will 

consist of a higher portion of variable pay as a percentage of their total remuneration.  

The following remuneration mix for the period under review was approved by the Remuneration Committee.  

Role Total 
Guaranteed 

pay 
Cash 

bonus 
Bonus 
shares 

Performance 
shares 

CEO 100% 36% 24% 16% 24% 

CFO 100% 39% 23% 15% 23% 

SVP 100% 43% 21.5% 14% 21.5% 

GUARANTEED REMUNERATION  

Sibanye endeavours to reward its people fairly and consistently according to their role and individual contribution to the Group. To 

achieve reasonable external parity and a competitive total remuneration position, Sibanye surveys the relevant data on comparable 

pay practices regularly. The Committee also pays attention to the matter of internal parity of pay differentials across executives and 

role types within the company. 

The benchmark for guaranteed remuneration is the market median level per category within the relevant gold mining companies and 

other comparable mining companies together with consideration of internal parity comparisons. 
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Guaranteed remuneration levels are reviewed annually by the Remuneration Committee, taking into account the Group’s 

performance, change in responsibility, levels of remuneration increases based on market trends and inflation. The Remuneration 

Committee also considers the impact of any guaranteed remuneration increase on the total remuneration package. 

ANNUAL BONUS 

Executive directors are able to earn bonuses of 60% (for the CFO) and 65% (for the CEO) of their guaranteed pay for on-target 

performance, which is a determined by a combination of Group and individual performance outcomes. The annual bonus could 

increase above 60% and 65% if stretch targets are achieved whereby the maximum variable pay potential is capped at two times the 

on-target bonus percentage. 

The targets for annual bonus are set by the Remuneration Committee. In the case of the CEO and CFO, 90% of the annual bonus is 

based on Group objectives and the remaining 10% on individual objectives. 

In 2015 annual bonuses were based on targets approved in advance by the Remuneration Committee, comprising a combination of 

Group and Operational objectives taking account of the Group’s business plans. For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group 

performance measures for the senior executives were set by the Remuneration Committee and the weightings were as follows: 

 Safety 20%; 

 Volume 20%; 

 Cost 25%; and 

 Quality (Grade) 35%. 

Aside from these four key performance indicators, the CEO and CFO were also assessed on individual objectives. There are set 

every year for each executive director based on key performance areas and are approved at the beginning of each year by the 

Remuneration Committee. The individual objectives are typically centred on three themes: Operational Excellence, Growing Sibanye 

and Securing Sibanye’s Future. 

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group performance measures for executive directors and senior executives were: 

 Weight   Achieved 

Corporate performance 2015 %  Actual Target %  

Safety Reduce FIFR 10 0.065 0.090 200% 

Reduce LTIFR 5 6.74 5.27 0% 

Reduce SIFR 5 4.68 3.15 0% 

Volume Primary on-reef development (m) 10 19,543 19,222 133% 

Primary off-reef development (m) 10 48,581 47,246 157% 

Cost Cost of ore milled – R/ton (underground) 25 1,740 1,771 135% 

Quality Grade and quality – gold produced (kg)1 35 48,638 52,000 57% 

  100   103% 

1 The organisational performance is based on allowance for 710kg gold production at Kloof that was lost due to three fires that are considered to be 

events outside direct management control as well as 152kg of gold that was lost at our surface operations across Beatrix, Driefontein and Kloof due 

to the need to reduce electricity consumption in response to load curtailment requirements imposed by Eskom. 

In turn, the CEO develops specific individual objectives with his own direct reports at the beginning of each year. These objectives 

are then reviewed with the Remuneration Committee and form the basis upon which the other executives’ performance, together with 

the Operational performance outcomes, will be reviewed at the end of the year. 
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Based on the bonuses determined for each executive for the year ended 31 December 2015, the annual bonus as a percentage of 

guaranteed pay paid to executive directors and prescribed officers of Sibanye in February 2016 was: 

  

Name 

2015 Annual 
Incentive as 

Percentage of 
Guaranteed 

Pay 

Executive directors  

Neal Froneman 70.8% 

Charl Keyter 64.1% 

Prescribed officers  

Shadwick Bessit 52.4% 

Hartley Dikgale 52.4% 

Cain Farrel 41.9% 

Nash Lutchman 52.4% 

Dawie Mostert 53.2% 

Adam Mutshinya 52.2% 

Thabisile Phumo1 52.7% 

Dick Plaistowe2 51.2% 

Wayne Robinson 52.7% 

Richard Stewart 53.7% 

Peter Turner 52.7% 

Robert van Niekerk 52.9% 

James Wellsted 52.7% 

1 Appointed as a prescribed officer on 1 June 2015 
2 Retired as a prescribed officer on 30 September 2015 

SCHEDULES OF FEES AND REMUNERATION 

The tables below set out the various fees, remuneration and equity ownership of executives and non-executives directors. 

DIRECTORS’ FEES 

In terms of the MOI, the fees for services as non-executive directors are determined by the Company’s shareholders at a general 

meeting. The current applicable schedule of fees, effective from 1st June 2015 is set out below. 

  

 Per annum 

The Chair of the Board R1,575,000 

The Chair of the Audit Committee R301,350 

The Chairs of the Nominating and Governance Committee, Remuneration Committee, Social and Ethics Committee, Risk 
Committee and Safety, Health and Sustainable Development Committee (excluding the Chairman of the Board) R185,850 

Members of the Board (excluding the Chairman of the Board) R832,650 

Members of the Audit Committee (excluding the Chairman of the Board) R156,450 

The Chairs of the Nominating and Governance Committee, Remuneration Committee, Social and Ethics Committee, Risk 
Committee and Safety, Health and Sustainable Development Committee (excluding the Chairman of the Board) R117,600 
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ FEES, EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND PRESCRIBED OFFICERS’ 

REMUNERATION 

The directors and prescribed officers of Sibanye were paid the following remuneration during the year ended 31 December 2015: 

 

Directors’ 
fees 

(R’000) 

Committee 
fees 

(R’000) 
Salary 

(R’000) 

Annual 
bonus 

accrued 
for the 
period 

ended 31 
December 
2015 paid 

in 2016 
(R’000) 

Shares 
proceeds 

and 
dividends 
on Bonus 

Shares 
(R’000) 

Pension 
scheme 

total 
contributions 

(R’000) 

Expense 
allowance 

(R’000) 

For the 
period 

ended 31 
December 

2015 
(R’000) 

For the 
period 

ended 31 
December 

2014 
(R’000) 

Executive directors          

Neal Froneman – – 7,136 5,660 6,165 793 132 19,886 12,868 

Charl Keyter – – 3,861 2,896 5,736 549 77 13,119 7,427 

Prescribed officers          

Shadwick Bessit – – 3,278 2,012 5,122 571 – 10,983 6,029 

Hartley Dikgale – – 2,569 1,409 1,223 167 – 5,368 3,926 

Cain Farrel – – 1,815 938 3,078 404 – 6,235 3,880 

Nash Lutchman – – 2,016 1,184 2,829 280 – 6,309 3,237 

Dawie Mostert – – 2,501 1,573 1,461 439 – 5,974 4,170 

Adam Mutshinya – – 2,271 1,398 878 399 – 4,946 4,570 

Thabisile Phumo1 – – 1,306 749 133 124 – 2,312 – 

Dick Plaistowe2 – – 3,016 1,123 876 – – 5,015 2,842 

Wayne Robinson – – 3,584 1,962 357 277 – 6,180 3,636 

Marius Saaiman3 – – 824 – – 70 – 894 4,130 

Richard Stewart – – 2,876 1,671 296 309 – 5,152 3,003 

Peter Turner  – – 5,231 3,212 17,334 908 – 26,685 13,541 

Robert van Niekerk – – 3,633 2,119 9,585 397 – 15,734 9,126 

James Wellsted – – 2,473 1,541 412 435 – 4,861 4,282 

Non-executive 
directors 

         

Robert Chan 816 231 – – – – – 1,047 553 

Chris Chadwick 816 231 – – – – – 1,047 633 

Timothy Cumming 816 413 – – – – 49 1,278 1,190 

Barry Davison 816 528 – – – – 43 1,387 1,255 

Richard Menell 816 681 – – – – 38 1,535 1,351 

Sello Moloko 1,544 – – – – – – 1,544 1,539 

Nkosemntu Nika 816 384 – – – – – 1,200 1,115 

Keith Rayner 816 604 – – – – – 1,420 1,253 

Zola Skweyiya4 330 93 – – – – – 423 931 

Susan van der 

Merwe 

816 269 – – – – – 1,085 1,054 

Jerry Vilakazi 816 297 – – – – – 1,113 1,082 

Jiyu Yuan5 529 75 – – – – – 604 – 

Total 9,747 3,806 48,390 29,447 55,485 6,122 339 153,336 98,623 
 

1 Appointed as a prescribed officer on 1 June 2015 
2 Retired on 30 September 2015 
3 Resigned on 31 March 2015 
4 Resigned as a non-executive director on 21 May 2015. 
5 Appointed as a non-executive director on 12 May 2015 
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DIRECTORS AND PRESCRIBED OFFICERS’ EQUITY-SETTLED INSTRUMENTS 

The directors and prescribed officers of Sibanye held the following Sibanye equity-settled instruments at 31 December 2015: 

        

 Equity-settled 
instruments 

at 31 
December 

2014 

Equity-settled 
instruments 

granted 
during  

the year 

Equity-settled 
instruments 

forfeited 
during  

the year 
Equity-settled instruments  
exercised during the year 

Equity-settled 
instruments 

at 31 
December 

2015 

 

Number Number Number Number 
Average 

price 

Share 
proceeds 
in Rands Number 

Executive directors        

Neal Froneman 2,392,055 461,109 – 273,732 21.44 5,962,328 2,579,432 

Charl Keyter 759,740 210,099 – 261,813 21.26 5,580,540 708,026 

Prescribed officers        

Shadwick Bessit 552,204 137,150 – 246,902 20.67 5,042,051 442,452 

Hartley Dikgale 249,767 96,039 – 51,642 23.07 1,182,799 294,164 

Cain Farrel 347,079 63,862 – 142,002 21.06 2,996,846 268,939 

Nash Lutchman 251,424 78,549 – 126,404 22.36 2.753.683 203,569 

Dawie Mostert 273,450 118,469 – 69,234 20.40 1,410,750 322,685 

Adam Mutshinya 437,872 95,549 3,133 38,632 20.29 77,215 491,656 

Thabisile Phumo1 87,327 23,301 – 5,374 23.45 126,020 105,254 

Dick Plaistowe2 37,207 86,881 80,599 43,489 19.78 859,971 - 

Wayne Robinson 47,296 126,259 – 16,525 20.41 337,219 157,030 

Marius Saaiman3 73,457 – 73,457 – – – - 

Richard Stewart 39,339 293,979 – 13,950 20.00 279,000 319,368 

Peter Turner 1,279,412 239,526 – 748,386 22.71 16,895,049 770,552 

Robert van Niekerk 873,179 160,408 – 456,631 20.39 9,325,944 576,956 

James Wellsted 333,427 117,002 – 15,790 22.52 355,605 434,639 

1 Appointed as a prescribed officer on 1 June 2015 ( and at 31 May 2015 the opening balance of equity-settled instruments was 87,327) 
2 Retired on 30 September 2015 
3 Resigned on 31 March 2015 

SHARE OWNERSHIP OF DIRECTORS AND PRESCRIBED OFFICERS 

The following sets forth, to the knowledge of Sibanye’s management, the total amount of ordinary shares of Sibanye directly or 

indirectly owned by the directors, prescribed officers, and their associates as at 31 December 2015: 

   

 Ordinary shares 

Holder 2015 2014 

Executive directors   

Neal Froneman1 164,832 - 

Charl Keyter2 227,898 78,404 

Prescribed officers   

Cain Farrel1 120,031 37,772 

Peter Turner3 614,302 448,135 

James Wellsted4 42,416 33,016 

Non-executive directors   

Chris Chadwick1 88 88 

Timothy Cumming1 100 100 

Barry Davison1 500,000 - 

Richard Menell1 44,800 44,800 

Keith Rayner5 60,000 60,000 

1 Share ownership at the date of this report is unchanged 

2 Share ownership at the date of this report is 20,000 ordinary shares 

3 Share ownership at the date of this report is 207,000 ordinary shares 

4 Share ownership at the date of this report is 35,379 ordinary shares 

5 Share ownership at the date of this report is 45,000 ordinary shares 
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REVIEW OF RULES AND TARGETS 

All scheme rules and targets are regularly reviewed by the Remuneration Committee to ensure they remain relevant and effective in 

enabling Sibanye business objectives by driving appropriate behaviours and providing retention incentives. 

THE SIBANYE GOLD LIMITED 2013 SHARE PLAN 

Sibanye has in place a share plan for certain of its employees, the Sibanye Gold Limited 2013 Share Plan (SGL Share Plan). The 

SGL Share Plan comprises two parts: 

 annual offers of bonus matching forfeitable shares, serving as a form of bonus deferral (part of the short term incentive 

awarded in addition to the cash bonus); and 

 annual conditional offers of performance vesting forfeitable shares, serving as a form of share-based long-term incentive. 

The SGL Share Plan is considered to provide a solid framework for short and long term (share based) incentivisation in a multi-

commodity divisionalised resources company. However certain amendments to the implementation of the SGL Share Plan, prompted 

by shareholder feedback are to be implemented and are now disclosed. 

A brief description is given of the two elements allowed for in the SGL Share Plan, together with a more detailed description of the 

performance share element, and its currently envisaged implementation. 

BONUS SHARES 

The Remuneration Committee makes an annual award of forfeitable shares to the executive directors, prescribed officers, Senior 

Vice Presidents (SVPs) and Vice Presidents (VPs). These are referred to as Bonus Shares. The size of this Bonus Share award 

depends on the individual’s annual cash bonus, which is determined by actual performance against predetermined targets. 

The face value of the Bonus Share award is equal to two-thirds of the actual annual cash bonus and is allocated in the form of 

restricted forfeitable shares. The Bonus Shares vest in two equal parts at nine months and eighteen months after the award date. 

Dividends are payable on the Bonus Shares during the holding period. 

PERFORMANCE SHARES 

The Remuneration Committee makes an annual award of conditional shares to the executive directors, prescribed officers, SVPs 

and VPs. These are referred to as Performance Shares. The number of Performance Shares awarded to an employee is based on 

the employee’s annual guaranteed pay and their grade combined with a factor related to their assessed performance rating for the 

prior year and using the relevant share price calculation at the offer date.  

Up until now, the actual number of Performance Shares which can vest from previous awards is determined by Sibanye’s share price 

performance measured against the performance of Harmony Gold Mining Company Limited and Pan African Resources plc over a 

performance period of three years. The number of Performance Shares which finally vest  is based on the relative change in the 

Sibanye share price compared to the respective change in the share prices of the other two peer-group companies, with discretion 

allowed due to the small sample size. For any Performance Share award to be settled by executives, an internal company 

performance target is required to be met before the external relative measure is applied. 

This threshold performance criterion for vesting of any Performance Shares is set at the achievement of at least 85% of Sibanye’s 

expected gold production over the three-year measurement period as set out in the business plans of Sibanye as approved by the 

Board. Only once this internal measure has been achieved, will the external measure (Sibanye’s share price performance measured 

against the abovementioned companies) be applied to determine the scale of the vesting of awards of Performance Shares. 

Various concerns have been expressed by representatives of the investor community relating to the performance conditions 

applicable on the vesting of Performance Shares. Specifically, concerns were expressed that: 

 a peer group comprising only two other companies was not sufficiently robust for the evaluation of Sibanye’s performance 

over the vesting period; and 

 the condition of an 85% threshold as an internal target for gold produced over the three year period under which the 

Performance Shares would not vest was insufficiently stretching. 

A review has been conducted to identify appropriate adjustments to the implementation policy that would appropriately address these 

concerns and provide for enhanced alignment with shareholder interests. The decisions resulting from this review and the revised 

policy, inter alia, are disclosed below. These will be applicable for all Performance Share awards from 1 March 2016 onwards,. 

Annual conditional awards of Performance Shares will continue to be made to the executive directors, prescribed officers, SVPs and 

VPs, and this element will be the primary form of share-based long term incentivisation. 

Performance Shares vest no earlier than the third anniversary of their award, to the extent that Sibanye has met specified 

performance criteria over the intervening period. Essentially the number of shares that vest will depend on the extent to which 
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Sibanye’s has performed over the intervening three year period relative to two particular performance criteria, Total Shareholder 

Return and Return on Capital Employed. These are considered to be the most widely acceptable vesting performance measures 

suited to aligning the outcome of long term share incentive awards with shareholders’ interests. This change will result in a possible 

vesting percentage ranging from 0% in the case of very poor performance to 100% vesting of the awarded Performance Shares in 

the event of having achieved stretched performance outcomes. 

The performance criteria used to govern the vesting of Performance Shares are determined by the Remuneration Committee and 

communicated in award letters to participants. The following two performance conditions, applied with the indicated weightings, are to 

be implemented for determining the vesting of future awards effective from March 2016 onwards: 

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN (TSR) – 70% WEIGHTING 

Total shareholder return (TSR) will be measured against a benchmark of eight mining and resources companies, a few of which can 

be deemed direct competitors, but collectively they can be deemed to be an alternative investment portfolio for Sibanye’s 

shareholders. TSR is generally recognised as the most faithful indicator of shareholder value creation. It is used extensively 

internationally and increasingly in South Africa, sometimes as a single metric but most often as one of two or three weighted 

performance metrics. In a few cases an absolute target is set, but most often it is targeted in relation to a peer or comparator group of 

“like” companies. The performance curve governing vesting will be: 

  

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN ELEMENT OF PERFORMANCE CONDITION (70%)  

Percentile on Peer Group Total Shareholder Return Curve % vesting 

0% 0% 

10% 0% 

20% 0% 

30% 5% 

40% 20% 

50% 35% 

60% 55% 

70% 75% 

80% 90% 

90% 100% 

100% 100% 

The eight peer group comparator companies for TSR comprises of similar market capitalisation companies reflective of the expected 

positioning of Sibanye over the short to medium term as a value driven multi-commodity resources company with a specific focus on 

gold and platinum and are set out in the table below: 

 

 

 

PEER GROUP COMPANIES FOR TSR COMPARISON 

AngloGold Ashanti Limited 

Anglo American Platinum Limited 

Gold Fields Limited 

Impala Platinum Holdings Limited 

Northam Platinum Limited 

Exxaro Resources Limited 

Harmony Gold Mining Company Limited 

African Rainbow Minerals Limited 
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RETURN ON CAPITAL EMPLOYED (ROCE) - 30% WEIGHTING 

Return on capital employed (ROCE) is a profitability ratio that measures how efficiently a company generates profits from its 

capital employed. This measure has been adopted as there has been a shift towards “excess returns” – “excess returns” provide 

a more central role in determining the current and potential value of a business. There is an increased focus on measuring and 

forecasting returns earned by businesses on both investments made in the past and expected future investments. For Sibanye, 

ROCE is to be evaluated against the company’s cost of capital (Ke). A minimum threshold on the performance scale for ROCE is 

set as equaling the cost of capital, Ke, which would lead to the ROCE element contributing 0% towards the performance 

condition. Delivering a return that exceeds Ke by 6% or more would be regarded as a superior return representing the maximum 

100% on the performance scale and full vesting in respect of the ROCE element. The performance curve governing vesting will 

be as follows: 

  RETURN ON CAPITAL EMPLOYED ELEMENT OF PERFORMANCE CONDITION (30%)   

Annual Return on Capital Employed % vesting 

≤Ke 0% 

Ke + 1% 16.7% 

Ke + 2% 33.3% 

Ke + 3% 50.0% 

Ke +4% 66.7% 

Ke + 5% 83.3% 

Ke + 6% 100% 

The overall performance condition will be determined by adding 70% of the Total Shareholder Return element to 30% of the 

Return on Capital Employed element.  Furthermore, should the Board, at its sole discretion, determine that there is evidence of 

extreme Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) malpractice during the Vesting Period, up to 20% of the Performance 

Shares that would otherwise settle on vesting may be forfeited. 

As indicated, the performance criteria described above govern vesting of all awards effective from 1 March 2016. Should any 

further adjustments be made they will govern future offers but will not be applied retrospectively. 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ CONTRACTS OF EMPLOYMENT 

The employment of an executive director will continue until terminated upon (i) 24 or 12 months’ notice by either party for the CEO 

and CFO, respectively, or (ii) retirement of the relevant executive director (currently provided for at age 60 in the contract). Sibanye 

can also terminate the executive director’s employment summarily for any reason recognised by law as justifying summary 

termination. 

Except for the two current executive directors, none of the prescribed officers have entered into employment contracts that provide 

for any compensation for severance because of change of control.  

The service agreements of the two current executive directors contain ‘change of control’ conditions, which are set out for information 

below. These contracts and conditions will be honoured until they terminate. However, any future appointments of executive directors 

will be made without provision for any compensation for severance because of change of control.  

The employment contracts for the two current executive directors provide that, in the event of the relevant executive director’s 

employment being terminated solely as a result of a “change of control” as defined below, within 12 months of the change of control, 

the executive director is entitled to: 

 payment of an amount equal to twice his Gross Remuneration Package, or two and a half times in the case of the CEO; 

 payment of an amount equal to the average of the incentive bonuses paid to the executive director during the previous two 

completed financial years; 

 any other payments and/or benefits due under the contracts; 

 payment of any annual incentive bonus he has earned during the financial year notwithstanding that the financial year is 

incomplete; 

 an entitlement to awards, in terms of the Sibanye Gold Limited Incentive Scheme, shall accelerate on the date of termination 

of employment and settle with the full number of shares previously awarded. The employment contracts further provide that 

these payments cover any compensation or damages the executive director may have under any applicable employment 

legislation. 

A “change of control” for the above is defined as the acquisition by a third party or concerned parties of 30% or more of Sibanye 

ordinary shares. In the event of the consummation of an acquisition, merger, consolidation, scheme of arrangement or other 

reorganisation, whether or not there is a change of control, if the executive director’s services are terminated, the “change of 

control” provisions summarised above also apply. 
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COMPANY INCOME STATEMENT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 

      

Figures in million - SA rand  Notes 2015 2014 2013 

Revenue  3  19 742.9  19 898.5  19 331.2 

Cost of sales   4  (16 317.5)   (15 540.4)  (15 056.7) 

Net operating profit    3 425.4  4 358.1  4 274.5 

Investment income  12,13,14.1  242.2  172.6  149.6 

Finance expense  5  (396.8)   (328.8)  (419.4) 

Share-based payments  6  (247.4)   (368.8)  (258.8) 

(Loss)/gain on financial instruments    (56.0)   (82.1)  0.8 

Gain on foreign exchange differences    0.9  8.8  4.2 

Exploration and feasibility costs  10  (21.7)   (9.4)  - 

Other income    1.1  19.9  63.6 

Other costs    (104.6)   (160.2)  (249.1) 

Net loss on derecognition of financial guarantee asset and liability  14.3  (158.3)   -  - 

Impairments  7  -  (504.4)  (821.0) 

Reversal of impairment  10  -  474.1  - 

Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment  10  49.0  4.7  5.5 

Loss on loss of control of subsidiary    -  -  (113.6) 

Transaction costs    (25.7)   (81.9)  (9.3) 

Restructuring costs    (67.2)   (120.7)  (404.6) 

Profit before royalties and tax    2 640.9  3 381.9  2 222.4 

Royalties  8.1  (383.9)   (422.1)  (414.6) 

Profit before tax    2 257.0  2 959.8  1 807.8 

Mining and income tax  8.2  (496.4)   (848.3)  (284.1) 

Profit for the year    1 760.6  2 111.5  1 523.7 

The Company does not have other comprehensive income, therefore no statement of comprehensive income is presented. 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these company financial statements.. 
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2015 

      

Figures in million - SA rand   Notes 2015 2014 2013 

ASSETS      

Non-current assets    23 570.5  23 807.8  17 142.9 

Property, plant and equipment  10  14 878.6  15 395.1  15 089.5 

Investment in subsidiaries  11  1 201.6  1 196.9  56.9 

Related-party loans  31  5 335.8  5 029.7  - 

Investment in associates  12  5.0  5.0  24.4 

Investments    145.5  145.5  145.5 

Environmental rehabilitation obligation funds  13  2 004.0  1 810.1  1 588.1 

Financial guarantee asset  14.1  -  225.5  238.5 
      

Current assets    3 470.2  2 146.5  2 247.6 

Inventories  15  45.3  19.8  4.0 

Trade and other receivables  16  1 380.1  779.9  918.7 

Related-party receivables  31  1 926.4  1 206.3  140.5 

Current portion of financial guarantee asset  14.1  -  57.1  51.7 

Cash and cash equivalents  17  118.4  83.4  1 132.7 
      

Total assets    27 040.7  25 954.3  19 390.5 
      

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES      

Total equity    15 893.4  14 671.9  8 901.0 

Stated share capital   18  21 734.6  21 734.6  17 245.8 

Other reserves    2 508.9  2 389.9  2 214.1 

Accumulated loss    (8 350.1)  (9 452.6)  (10 558.9) 
      

Non-current liabilities    5 237.4  7 289.8  6 964.4 

Deferred tax liabilities  19  3 523.1  3 708.2  3 732.6 

Borrowings  20  -  1 481.4  1 491.4 

Environmental rehabilitation obligation  21  1 579.7  1 759.6  1 660.7 

Post-retirement healthcare obligation    16.1  14.9  16.0 

Share-based payment obligations  6  118.5  325.7  63.7 
      

Current liabilities    5 909.9  3 992.6  3 525.1 

Trade and other payables  22  2 077.5  1 932.3  1 688.1 

Financial guarantee liability  14.2  -  197.0  206.6 

Tax and royalties payable  25  129.9  80.6  771.1 

Current portion of borrowings  20  1 961.6  498.1  499.5 

Current portion of share-based payment obligations  6  395.7  18.0  37.6 

Related-party payables  31  1 345.2  1 266.6  322.2 
      

Total equity and liabilities    27 040.7  25 954.3  19 390.5 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these company financial statements. 
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 

       

Figures in million - SA rand   Notes 

Stated 

share 

  capital1 

Share- 

based 

  payment 

reserve 

  Accumulated 

loss 

Total 

  equity 

Balance at 31 December 2012    -  2 008.9  (12 020.3)  (10 011.4) 

Total comprehensive income for the year    -  -  1 523.7  1 523.7 

Profit for the year    -  -  1 523.7  1 523.7 

Share-based payments  6  -  205.2  -  205.2 

Dividends paid  9  -  -  (271.9)  (271.9) 

Share subscription  18  17 245.8  -  -  17 245.8 

Transaction with shareholder  14  -  -  209.6  209.6 

Balance at 31 December 2013    17 245.8  2 214.1  (10 558.9)  8 901.0 

Total comprehensive income for the year    -  -  2 111.5  2 111.5 

Profit for the year    -  -  2 111.5  2 111.5 

Share-based payments  6  -  175.8  -  175.8 

Dividends paid  9  -  -  (1 005.2)  (1 005.2) 

Shares issued   18  4 488.8  -  -  4 488.8 

Balance at 31 December 2014    21 734.6  2 389.9  (9 452.6)  14 671.9 

Total comprehensive income for the year    -  -  1 760.6  1 760.6 

Profit for the year    -  -  1 760.6  1 760.6 

Share-based payments  6  -  119.0  -  119.0 

Dividends paid  9  -  -  (658.1)  (658.1) 

Balance at 31 December 2015    21 734.6  2 508.9  (8 350.1)  15 893.4 

1 Stated share capital as at 31 December 2012 was a nominal amount of 1,000 shares of R1,000 and shown as zero due to rounding. 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these company financial statements. 
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 

      

Figures in million - SA rand   Notes 2015 2014 2013 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES      

Cash generated by operations  23  6 119.1  6 927.5  6 758.6 

Post-retirement health care payments    (0.2)  (2.3)  (2.6) 

Cash-settled share-based payments paid  6  (38.9)  (142.7)  (3.1) 

Change in working capital  24  (1 124.1)  (205.6)  754.0 

Cash generated from operating activities    4 955.9  6 576.9  7 506.9 

Interest received    127.1  65.6  52.6 

Interest paid  5  (254.1)  (192.2)  (325.4) 

Guarantee fee received  14.1  9.6  53.6  47.0 

Guarantee release fee  14.3  (61.4)  -  - 

Royalties paid  25.1  (372.7)  (649.4)  (249.0) 

Tax paid  25.2  (643.4)  (1 335.9)  (280.0) 

Dividends paid  9  (658.1)  (1 005.2)  (271.9) 

Net cash from operating activities    3 102.9  3 513.4  6 480.2 
      

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES      

Additions to property, plant and equipment  10  (2 728.1)  (2 939.8)  (2 865.7) 

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment  10  60.6  14.2  6.9 

Payment of environmental rehabilitation obligation  21  (0.3)  (10.9)  (10.5) 

Contributions to environmental rehabilitation obligation funds  13  (75.2)  (67.3)  (172.3) 

Investment in subsidiary  11  -  (415.3)  (137.9) 

Loan repaid by equity-accounted investee  12  20.9  -  - 

Loan advanced to equity-accounted investee  12  (3.0)  (384.6)  - 

Related-party loans repaid  31  (413.1)  (1 168.0)  (17 339.0) 

Related-party loans raised  31  91.2  424.4  11.7 

Net cash used in investing activities    (3 047.0)  (4 547.3)  (20 506.8) 
      

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES      

Proceeds from shares issued on unbundling    -  -  17 245.8 

Loans repaid  20  (1 572.9)  (1 639.0)  (9 840.0) 

Loans raised  20  1 552.0  1 623.6  7 620.0 

Financing costs capitalised    -  -  (9.1) 

Net cash used in financing activities    (20.9)  (15.4)  15 016.7 
      

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents    35.0  (1 049.3)  990.1 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year    83.4  1 132.7  142.6 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year  17  118.4  83.4  1 132.7 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these company financial statements. 
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1.   ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these separate (company) financial statements are set out 

below. Where an accounting policy is specific to a note, the policy is described in the note which it relates to. These 

policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, except for the adoption of new and revised standards 

and interpretations. The consolidated financial statements of the Group can be found on Sibanye’s website 

(www.sibanyegold.co.za) 

1.1 REPORTING ENTITY 

Sibanye Gold Limited (Sibanye or the Company) is a South African focused gold producer, listed on the Main Board of the 

JSE Limited (JSE) and New York Stock Exchange (NYSE). Sibanye’s principal operations are Driefontein, Kloof and 

Beatrix. 

1.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION 

The company financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 have been prepared on a going concern basis in 

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as issued by the International Accounting Standards 

Board, the South African Institute of Chartered Accountants Financial Reporting Guides issued by the Accounting 

Practices Committee and Financial Reporting Pronouncements issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council, as 

well as the requirements of the South African Companies Act and JSE Listings Requirements. The company financial 

statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, financial assets and financial liabilities (including 

derivative instruments), which are measured at fair value through profit or loss. 

STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED STANDARDS EFFECTIVE 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 

During the financial year, the following new and revised accounting standards and amendments to standards became 

effective and had no impact on the Company’s financial statements: 
   

Pronouncement Title Effective date 

IAS 19 (Amendment) Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions 1 July 2014 

Amendments to 6 standards Improvements to IFRS 2010-2012 cycle 1 July 2014 

Amendments to 4 standards Improvements to IFRS 2011-2013 cycle 1 July 2014 

STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED STANDARDS WHICH 

ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE 

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been published that apply to the 

Company’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016 but have not been early adopted by the Company. 

Other than disclosure, the impact of these standards is not expected to be significant. The standards, amendments and 

interpretations that are applicable to the Company are: 
 

 

 

  

Pronouncement Title Effective date1 

IFRS 9 (New standard) Financial Instruments 

IFRS 9 arises from a three-part project to replace IAS 39 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. 

1 January 2018 

Amendments to IFRS 10 and 
IAS 28  

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate 
or Joint Venture 

The amendments address a conflict between the requirements of 
IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures and IFRS 10 
Consolidated Financial Statements, and clarify that in a transaction 
involving an associate or joint venture the extent of gain or loss 
recognition depends on whether the assets sold or contributed 
constitute a business. 

1 January 2016 
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Pronouncement Title Effective date1 

IFRS 11 (Amendment) Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations 

The amendments add new guidance on how to account for the 
acquisition of an interest in a joint operation that constitutes a 
business which specify the appropriate accounting treatment for 
such acquisitions. 

1 January 2016 

IFRS 15 (New standard) Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

IFRS 15 replaces IAS 11 Construction contracts, IAS 18 Revenue, 
IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC 15 Agreements for 
the Construction of Real Estate, IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from 
Customers and SIC-31 Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving 
Advertising Services. IFRS 15 specifies how and when an IFRS 
reporter will recognise revenue as well as requiring such entities to 
provide users of financial statements with more informative, relevant 
disclosures. The standard provides a single, principles based five-
step model to be applied to all contracts with customers. 

1 January 2018 

IFRS 16 (New standard) Leases 

IFRS 16 replaces the previous lease standard IAS 17 Leases and 
related interpretations. IFRS 16 has one model for lessees which will 
result in almost all leases being included in the Statement of 
Financial position. 

1 January 2019 

IAS 1 (Amendment) Disclosure Initiative 

The amendments provide additional guidance on the application of 
materiality and aggregation when preparing financial statements.  

1 January 2016 

Amendments to IAS 16 and 
IAS 38 

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and 
Amortisation 

The amendments clarify the basis for the calculation of depreciation 
and amortisation as being the expected pattern of consumption of 
the future economic benefits of the asset. 

1 January 2016 

Amendments to 4 standards Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle 1 January 2016 

1 Effective date refers to annual period beginning on or after said date 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES 

Use of estimates: The preparation of the financial statements requires the Company’s management to make estimates and 

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at 

the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The 

determination of estimates requires the exercise of judgement based on various assumptions and other factors such as 

historical experience, current and expected economic conditions, and in some cases actuarial techniques. Actual results 

could differ from those estimates. 

The more significant areas requiring the use of management estimates and assumptions relate to Mineral Reserves that 

are the basis of future cash flow estimates and unit-of-production depreciation, depletion and amortisation calculations; 

impairments, reversal of impairments, write-downs of inventory to net realisable value; deferred tax; borrowings; 

environmental, reclamation and closure obligations; and contingent liabilities. 

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including 

expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of 

assets and liabilities within the financial year are discussed under the relevant note of the item affected. 

TRANSACTIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS OF SIBANYE 

Transactions with owners in the capacity as equity participants are not recognised in profit or loss, but instead are 

recognised in equity with a corresponding change in assets or liabilities. 
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1.3 FOREIGN CURRENCIES 

FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY 

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic 

environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency) which is South African rand. The company financial 

statements are presented in South African rand, which is the Company’s presentation currency. 

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates 

of the transactions. Translation of monetary assets and liabilities into the functional currency is done as at 

31 December 2015. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the 

translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, are recognised in profit or loss. 

1.4 COMPARATIVES 

Where necessary comparative periods may be adjusted to conform to changes in presentation. 

With effect from 1 January 2015 the Company has reclassified exploration and evaluation assets as a separate class of 

property, plant and equipment in order to enhance disclosure. The 31 December 2013 carrying value of mine development, 

infrastructure and other has decreased by R244.3 million, which has been reclassified as exploration and evaluation 

assets. The 31 December 2014 carrying value of mine development, infrastructure and other has decreased by 

R253.6 million, which have been reclassified as exploration and evaluation assets. 

The reclassifications have no impact on the statements of financial position.  
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2.  SEGMENT REPORTING 

ACCOUNTING POLICY 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision 

maker and is based on individual mining operations. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating 

resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Executive Committee that 

makes strategic decisions. 
       

Figures in million - SA rand   Company   Driefontein Kloof Beatrix   Corporate1 

31 December 2015       

Revenue   19 742.9  8 236.0  6 691.4  4 815.5  - 

Underground revenue   17 952.6  7 284.1  6 112.8  4 555.7  - 

Surface revenue   1 790.3  951.9  578.6  259.8  - 

Operating costs2   (13 402.4)  (5 234.2)  (4 777.2)  (3 391.0)  - 

Underground operating costs   (12 320.6)  (4 681.2)  (4 454.9)  (3 184.5)  - 

Surface operating costs   (1 081.8)  (553.0)  (322.3)  (206.5)  - 
       

Operating profit3   6 340.5  3 001.8  1 914.2  1 424.5  - 

Amortisation and depreciation   (2 915.1)  (1 142.6)  (1 029.3)  (739.4)  (3.8) 

Net operating profit   3 425.4  1 859.2  884.9  685.1  (3.8) 

Investment income   242.2  67.5  50.6  31.3  92.8 

Finance expense   (396.8)  (147.7)  (150.1)  (57.2)  (41.8) 

Share-based payments   (247.4)  (35.1)  (27.6)  (23.5)  (161.2) 

Exploration and feasibility costs   (21.7)  (13.9)  (0.6)  (0.9)  (6.3) 

Net other costs4   (158.6)  (64.0)  (59.8)  (46.4)  11.6 

Non-recurring items5   (202.2)  (2.9)  7.2  (8.4)  (198.1) 

Royalties   (383.9)  (196.8)  (98.4)  (88.7)  - 

Current tax   (681.5)  (430.8)  (97.4)  (153.4)  0.1 

Deferred tax   185.1  53.4  0.9  18.0  112.8 

Profit for the year   1 760.6  1 088.9  509.7  355.9  (193.9) 

Sustaining capital expenditure   568.4  249.2  225.6  86.1  7.5 

Ore reserve development   2 078.0  727.0  840.6  510.4  - 

Growth projects   81.7  18.0  63.7  -  - 

Total capital expenditure   2 728.1  994.2  1 129.9  596.5  7.5 

1 Corporate represents the items to reconcile segment data to the company financial statement totals. This does not represent a separate 
segment as it does not generate mining revenue. 

2 Operating costs is defined as cost of sales before amortisation and depreciation. 
3 Operating profit is defined as revenue minus operating costs. 
4 Net other costs consists of loss on financial instruments; gain on foreign exchange differences; other income and other costs as detailed in 

profit or loss. 
5 Non-recurring items consists of net loss on derecognition of financial guarantee asset and liability; profit on disposal of property, plant and 

equipment, transaction costs and restructuring costs as detailed in profit or loss. 
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Figures in million - SA rand   Company   Driefontein Kloof Beatrix   Corporate1 

31 December 2014       

Revenue   19 898.5  7 829.4  7 502.8  4 566.3  - 

Underground revenue   18 316.3  7 200.2  6 887.3  4 228.8  - 

Surface revenue   1 582.2  629.2  615.5  337.5  - 

Operating costs2   (12 618.7)  (4 912.3)  (4 502.3)  (3 204.0)  - 

Underground operating costs   (11 566.7)  (4 427.6)  (4 087.0)  (3 052.1)  - 

Surface operating costs   (1 051.9)  (484.7)  (415.3)  (151.9)  - 
       

Operating profit3   7 279.8  2 917.1  3 000.5  1 362.3  - 

Amortisation and depreciation   (2 921.7)  (1 129.3)  (1 322.3)  (468.4)  (1.7) 

Net operating profit   4 358.1  1 787.8  1 678.2  893.9  (1.7) 

Investment income   172.6  48.3  42.7  24.5  57.1 

Finance expense   (328.8)  (152.8)  (132.6)  (41.8)  (1.6) 

Share-based payments   (368.8)  (69.1)  (58.2)  (45.9)  (195.6) 

Exploration and feasibility costs   (9.4)  -  -  (9.4)  - 

Net other costs4   (213.6)  (86.3)  (56.6)  (56.5)  (14.2) 

Non-recurring items5   (228.2)  (95.1)  (152.0)  469.4  (450.5) 

Royalties   (422.1)  (165.5)  (174.5)  (82.1)  - 

Current tax   (872.7)  (339.2)  (379.6)  (153.9)  - 

Deferred tax   24.4  9.8  71.3  (128.5)  71.8 

Profit for the year   2 111.5  937.9  838.7  869.7  (534.7) 

Sustaining capital expenditure   922.9  465.3  355.7  101.9  - 

Ore reserve development   2 009.5  683.6  879.8  446.1  - 

Growth projects   7.4  -  -  -  7.4 

Total capital expenditure   2 939.8  1 148.9  1 235.5  548.0  7.4 

 
       

Figures in million - SA rand   Company   Driefontein Kloof Beatrix   Corporate1 

31 December 2013       

Revenue   19 331.2  8 162.7  6 954.4  4 214.1  - 

Underground revenue   17 663.6  7 354.6  6 323.4  3 985.6  - 

Surface revenue   1 667.6  808.1  631.0  228.5  - 

Operating costs2   (11 973.3)  (4 881.2)  (4 100.7)  (2 991.4)  - 

Underground operating costs   (11 030.5)  (4 421.9)  (3 762.1)  (2 846.5)  - 

Surface operating costs   (942.8)  (459.3)  (338.6)  (144.9)  - 
       

Operating profit3   7 357.9  3 281.5  2 853.7  1 222.7  - 

Amortisation and depreciation   (3 083.4)  (1 458.0)  (1 096.5)  (528.1)  (0.8) 

Net operating profit   4 274.5  1 823.5  1 757.2  694.6  (0.8) 

Investment income   149.6  55.0  47.4  27.5  19.7 

Finance expense   (419.4)  (193.6)  (152.3)  (72.8)  (0.7) 

Share-based payments   (258.8)  (61.1)  (47.2)  (41.8)  (108.7) 

Net other costs4   (180.5)  (67.0)  (70.5)  (40.4)  (2.6) 

Non-recurring items5   (1 343.0)  (159.5)  (125.6)  (900.1)  (157.8) 

Royalties   (414.6)  (198.3)  (147.1)  (69.2)  - 

Current tax   (798.7)  (427.7)  (273.5)  (97.5)  - 

Deferred tax   514.6  174.0  18.3  336.3  (14.0) 

Profit for the year   1 523.7  945.3  1 006.7  (163.4)  (264.9) 

Sustaining capital expenditure   982.7  320.2  459.8  200.6  2.1 

Ore reserve development   1 883.0  702.8  843.8  336.4  - 

Total capital expenditure   2 865.7  1 023.0  1 303.6  537.0  2.1 

1 Corporate represents the items to reconcile segment data to company financial statement totals. This does not represent a separate 
segment as it does not generate mining revenue. 

2 Operating costs is defined as cost of sales before amortisation and depreciation.  
3 Operating profit is defined as revenue minus operating cost. 
4 Net other costs consists of loss/gain on financial instruments; gain on foreign exchange differences; other income and other costs as 

detailed in profit or loss. 
5 Non-recurring items consists of impairment; reversal of impairment; profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment; loss on loss of 

control of subsidiary; transaction costs and restructuring costs as detailed in profit or loss. 
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3.  REVENUE 

ACCOUNTING POLICY 

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of 

revenue can be reliably measured. 

Revenue arising from gold sales is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, once the 

significant risks and rewards of ownership have passed to the buyer. These criteria are typically met when the gold is 

delivered to the refinery. The price of gold is determined by market forces. 

       Figures in million - SA rand    2015 2014 2013 

Revenue from mining activities    19 742.9  19 898.5  19 331.2 

Total revenue    19 742.9  19 898.5  19 331.2 
 

4.  COST OF SALES 

ACCOUNTING POLICY 

The following accounting policies relates to some costs that are included in cost of sales: 

SHORT-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount 

expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past 

service provided by the employee and the obligation can be reliably estimated. 

PENSION AND PROVIDENT FUNDS 

The Company operates a defined contribution retirement plan and contributes to a number of industry-based defined 

contribution retirement plans. The retirement plans are funded by payments from employees and the Company. 

Contributions to defined contribution funds are expensed as incurred. 

      Figures in million - SA rand   Notes 2015 2014 2013 

Salaries and wages    (6 151.8)  (5 870.5)  (6 155.9) 

Consumable stores  15  (3 123.3)  (2 954.4)  (2 720.7) 

Utilities    (2 660.9)  (2 438.9)  (2 315.4) 

Mine contracts    (1 048.7)  (949.8)  (928.2) 

Other    (2 495.7)  (2 414.6)  (1 736.1) 

Ore reserve development costs capitalised  10  2 078.0  2 009.5  1 883.0 

Operating costs    (13 402.4)  (12 618.7)  (11 973.3) 

Amortisation and depreciation  10  (2 915.1)  (2 921.7)  (3 083.4) 

Total cost of sales    (16 317.5)  (15 540.4)  (15 056.7) 

All employees are members of various defined contribution retirement plans. The cost of providing retirement benefits for 

the year amounted to R557.3 million (2014: R512.4 million and 2013: R509.4 million). 
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5.  FINANCE EXPENSE 

ACCOUNTING POLICY 

Finance expense comprises interest on borrowings, post-retirement healthcare obligation and environmental rehabilitation 

obligation offset by borrowing costs capitalised on qualifying assets. 

Interest payable on borrowings is recognised in profit or loss over the term of the borrowings using the effective interest 

method. Cash flows from interest paid are classified under operating activities in the statement of cash flows. 

      Figures in million - SA rand   Notes 2015 2014 2013 

Interest charge on:      

Borrowings - interest paid  20  (247.9)  (186.5)  (319.4) 

Borrowings - unwinding of amortised cost  20  (3.0)  (4.0)  - 

Environmental rehabilitation obligation  21  (138.3)  (131.4)  (92.7) 

Post-retirement healthcare obligation    (1.4)  (1.2)  (1.3) 

Other    (6.2)  (5.7)  (6.0) 

Total finance expense    (396.8)  (328.8)  (419.4) 
 

6.  SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 

ACCOUNTING POLICY 

The Company operates an equity-settled compensation plan in which certain employees of the Company participate. The 

fair value of the equity-settled instruments is measured by reference to the fair value of the equity instrument granted. 

Fair value is based on market prices of the equity-settled instruments granted, if available, taking into account the terms 

and conditions upon which those equity-settled instruments were granted. Fair value of equity-settled instruments granted 

is estimated using appropriate valuation models and appropriate assumptions at the grant date. Non-market vesting 

conditions (service period prior to vesting) are not taken into account when estimating the fair value of the equity-settled 

instruments at grant date. Market conditions are taken into account in determining the fair value at grant date. 

The grant date fair value of the equity-settled instruments is recognised as an employee benefit expense over the vesting 

period based on the Company’s estimate of the number of instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding 

increase in the share-based payment reserve. Vesting assumptions for non-market conditions are reviewed at each 

reporting date to ensure they reflect current expectations. 

The Company also operates a cash-settled compensation plan in which certain employees of the Company participate. 

The grant date fair value of the cash-settled instruments is equal to the value of the equity-settled instrument granted on 

the same grant date. 

The grant date fair value of the cash-settled instruments is recognised as an employee benefit expense over the vesting 

period based on the Company’s estimate of the number of instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding 

increase in the share-based payment obligation. At each reporting date the obligation is remeasured to the fair value of the 

instrument, to reflect the potential outflow of cash resources to settle the liability, with a corresponding adjustment to gain 

or loss on financial instrument in profit or loss. Vesting assumptions for non-market conditions are reviewed at each 

reporting date to ensure they reflect current expectations. 

Where the terms of an equity-settled or a cash-settled award are modified, the originally determined expense is recognised 

as if the terms had not been modified. In addition, an expense is recognised for any modification, which increases the total 

fair value of the share-based payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the participant as measured at the date of 

the modification. 
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      Figures in million - SA rand     2015 2014 2013 

(a) Sibanye Gold Limited 2013 Share Plan1      

Performance shares    (92.1)  (132.9)  (132.5) 

Bonus shares    (22.2)  (27.4)  (16.2) 

(b) Sibanye Gold Limited 2013 Phantom Share Scheme      

Performance shares    (116.8)  (83.3)  (35.5) 

Bonus shares    (15.2)  (118.5)  (40.0) 

Phantom share dividends    (1.1)  (6.7)  (1.5) 

(c) Gold Fields Limited 2012 Share Plan1      

Performance shares    -  -  (11.1) 

Bonus shares    -  -  (2.3) 

(d) Gold Fields Limited 2005 Share Plan1      

Performance vesting restricted shares    -  -  (17.8) 

Performance allocated share appreciation rights    -  -  (1.9) 

Total share-based payments    (247.4)  (368.8)  (258.8) 

1 Included in the share-based payment reserve is R4.7 million (2014: R15.5 million and 2013: R23.4 million) relating to subsidiaries not 

included in the equity-settled share-based payment expense, refer to note 11. 

(a)  SIBANYE GOLD LIMITED 2013 SHARE PLAN 

On 21 November 2012 the shareholder of Sibanye approved the adoption of the Sibanye Gold Limited 2013 Share Plan 

(SGL Share Plan) with effect from the date of listing. The SGL Share Plan provides for two methods of participation, 

namely Performance Shares (PS) and the Bonus Shares (BS). This plan seeks to attract, retain, motivate and reward 

participating employees on a basis which seeks to align the interests of such employees with those of the shareholders. 

The Remuneration Committee makes an annual conditional award of PS to the CEO, CFO, SVPs and Vice Presidents 

(VPs). The number of PS awarded to an employee is based on the employee’s annual guaranteed remuneration, grade 

and performance. The actual number of PS which vest is determined by Sibanye’s share price performance measured 

against the performance of a peer group, being Harmony Gold Mining Company Limited (Harmony), Pan African 

Resources PLC and Gold One International Limited (Gold One) (subsequently delisted), over a performance period of 

three years. This peer group is determined and approved by the Remuneration Committee. The PS, which vest, are based 

on the relative change in the Sibanye share price compared to the respective share prices of the individual companies 

within the peer group and with discretion allowed due to the small sample size. For any PS award to be settled to 

executives, an internal company performance target is required to be met before the external relative measure is applied. 

The target performance criterion is set at 85% of Sibanye’s expected gold production over the three-year measurement 

period as set out in the business plans of Sibanye as approved by the Board. Only once the internal measure has been 

achieved, will the external measure (Sibanye’s share price performance measured against the abovementioned peer 

group) be applied to determine the scale of the vesting of awards of PS. 

The Remuneration Committee makes an annual conditional award of BS to each executive director and senior executive. 

The size of the award depends on the individual’s annual cash bonus, which is determined by actual performance against 

predetermined targets. Restricted BS are allocated on the ratio of two-thirds of an individual’s annual bonus. The BS vest 

in two equal parts at nine months and 18 months after the award date. Dividends are payable on the BS during the holding 

period. 

Details of the options granted under this plan to employees are detailed below: 
         

Performance shares (PS)    Bonus Shares (BS) 

2013 2014 2015   Number of instruments   2015 2014 2013 

 -  28 083 703  23 289 262  Outstanding at beginning of the year   595 012  1 135 455  - 

    Movement during the year:     

 28 568 317  -  -  Granted to replace Gold Fields share plans   -  -  702 915 

 4 118 870  2 953 057  3 059 058  Granted during the year   862 702  1 275 979  1 135 455 

 (1 523 111)  (5 567 771)  (16 690 497)  Exercised and released   (1 010 209)  (1 672 579)  (638 086) 

 (3 080 373)  (2 179 727)  (259 751)  Forfeited   (30 239)  (143 843)  (64 829) 

 28 083 703  23 289 262  9 398 072  Outstanding at end of the year   417 266  595 012  1 135 455 

The fair value of the above PS equity instruments granted during the year were valued using the Monte Carlo Simulation model. 

For the BS equity instruments, a future trading model is used to estimate the loss in value to the holders of bonus shares due 

to trading restrictions. The actual valuation is developed using a Monte Carlo analysis of the future share price of Sibanye. 
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The inputs to the models for options granted during the year were as follows: 

         Performance shares (PS)    Bonus Shares (BS) 

2013 2014 2015      2015 2014 2013 

64.6% 56.4% 42.3%  – weighted average historical volatility 

(based on a statistical analysis of the share 

price on a weighted moving average basis 

for the expected term of the option) 

 42.3% 56.4% 64.6% 

 3  3  3  – expected term (years)  n/a n/a n/a 

n/a n/a n/a  – expected term (months)  9 - 18 9 - 18 9 - 18 

2.5% 4.7% 4.9%  – expected dividend yield  4.9% 4.7% 2.5% 

6.0% 5.7% 6.4%  – weighted average three-year risk-free 

interest rate (based on SA interest rates) 

 6.4% 5.7% 6.0% 

n/a n/a n/a  – marketability discount  2.1% 2.2% 3.0% 

 12.55  38.61  37.41  – weighted average fair value  25.56  24.94  12.57 

The compensation cost related to awards not yet recognised under the plan at 31 December 2015 amounts to R134.2 

million and is to be spread over three years. 1,287,074 options had vested and were exercisable as at 31 December 2015 

At the Annual General Meeting (AGM) the directors of Sibanye were authorised to issue and allot all or any of such shares 

required for the plans, but in aggregate all plans may not exceed 70,619,126 (10%) of the total issued ordinary shares 

capital of the Company. An individual participant may also not be awarded an aggregate of shares from all or any such 

plans exceeding 7,061,913 (1%) of the Company’s total issued ordinary share capital. The unexercised options and shares 

under all plans represented 11,102,412 (1.2%) of the total issued ordinary share capital of Sibanye at 31 December 2015. 

(b)  SIBANYE GOLD LIMITED 2013 PHANTOM SHARE SCHEME 

On 14 May 2013 Sibanye’s Remuneration Committee limited the issuance of share options for the 2013 allocation under 

the SGL Share Plan to senior management only. Middle and certain senior management, who previously participated in 

the equity-settled share option scheme, now participate in a cash-settled share scheme, the Sibanye Gold 2013 Phantom 

Share Scheme (the SGL Phantom Scheme). Notwithstanding that the SGL Phantom Scheme is not subject to compliance 

with the JSE Listings Requirements as it is a purely cash-settled remuneration scheme, the SGL Share Plan rules apply, in 

all material aspects, to the SGL Phantom Scheme, other than the issue of new shares to participants. 

Details of the phantom shares granted under this scheme to employees are detailed below: 

         Performance shares (PS)    Bonus Shares (BS) 

2013 2014 2015   Number of instruments   2015 2014 2013 

 -  13 727 945  18 966 208  Outstanding at beginning of the year   1 482 685  5 417 623  - 

    Movement during the year:     

 14 733 310  6 106 128  -  Granted during the year   -  3 056 590  5 853 894 

 (42 881)  (58 160)  (662 139)  Vested and paid   (1 438 754)  (6 762 108)  (56 933) 

 (962 484)  (809 705)  (1 045 743)  Forfeited   (43 931)  (229 420)  (379 338) 

 13 727 945  18 966 208  17 258 326  Outstanding at end of the year   -  1 482 685  5 417 623 

The grant date fair value of the above PS and BS cash-settled instruments granted during the year were valued using the 

Monte Carlo Simulation model and a future trading model, respectively, as with the equity-settled instruments above. As 

the cash-settled and equity-settled instruments are issued on the same day the grant date fair value assumptions of the 

cash-settled instruments is the same as for the equity-settled instruments. 

The fair value of the cash-settled instruments at reporting date, used to value the share-based payment obligation, is 

determined using the same assumptions as for the grant date valuation. However, the respective models take into account 

the actual share data of the peer group for the period from the grant date to the reporting date. 

The compensation cost related to awards not yet recognised under the scheme at 31 December 2015 amounts to 

R128.5 million and is to be spread over 14 months. 
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Reconciliation of the share-based payment obligations: 

      Figures in million - SA rand     2015 2014 2013 

Balance at beginning of the year    343.7  101.3  - 

Share-based payments expense    133.1  208.5  77.0 

Fair value adjustment of obligation1    76.3  176.6  27.4 

Cash-settled share-based payments paid2    (38.9)  (142.7)  (3.1) 

Balance at end of the year    514.2  343.7  101.3 

      

Reconciliation of the non-current and current portion of the 

share-based payments obligations:      

Share-based payment obligations    514.2  343.7  101.3 

Current portion of share-based payment obligations    (395.7)  (18.0)  (37.6) 

Non-current portion of share-based payment obligation    118.5  325.7  63.7 

1 The fair value adjustment at reporting date is included in loss on financial instruments in profit or loss and not as part of share-based 
payments expense. 

2 Payments during the year relate to the proportionate vesting of shares to employees who have left the Company in good faith. BS options 
under the SGL Share Plan are issued on grant date and thus dividends are paid when the Company declares a dividend. Similarly the BS 
holders under the SGL Phantom Scheme receive share-based payments to the equivalent of dividends paid, which were also paid during 
the year. 

(c)  GOLD FIELDS LIMITED 2012 SHARE PLAN 

At the Gold Fields AGM on 14 May 2012 Gold Fields shareholders approved the adoption of the Gold Fields Limited 2012 

Share Plan (the 2012 Plan) to replace the Gold Fields Limited 2005 Share Plan. The 2012 Plan provided for two methods 

of participation, namely PS and BS. 

As a result of the unbundling all unvested options on the date of the unbundling were converted to instruments under the 

SGL Share Plan as described in (a). Sibanye employees had to exercise all options that vested proportionately up to the 

date of unbundling. 

Details of the options granted under this scheme to Sibanye employees are detailed below: 

         Performance shares (PS)    Bonus Shares (BS) 

2013 2014 2015   Number of instruments   2015 2014 2013 

 1 330 007  -  -  Outstanding at beginning of the year   -  -  201 213 

    Movement during the year:     

 285 994  -  -  Granted during the year   -  -  - 

 (436 326)  -  -  Exercised and released   -  -  (111 574) 

 (44 792)  -  -  Transferred within the Gold Fields group   -  -  (18 222) 

 (1 134 883)  -  -  Converted to Sibanye options   -  -  (71 417) 

 -  -  -  Outstanding at end of the year   -  -  - 
 

The shares that were granted during 2013 were as a result of the unbundling and took into account the current share 

prices and vesting percentage at the date of unbundling. The valuation was not done according to the Monte Carlo 

Simulation as in 2012 for options granted in the ordinary course of business. 

 (d) GOLD FIELDS LIMITED 2005 SHARE PLAN 

At the Gold Fields AGM on 17 November 2005 shareholders approved the adoption of the Gold Fields Limited 2005 Share 

Plan (the 2005 Plan) to replace the GF Management Incentive Scheme approved in 1999. The 2005 Plan provided for two 

methods of participation, namely Performance Allocated Share Appreciation Rights (SARS) and Performance Vesting 

Restricted Share (PVRS). 

As a result of the unbundling all unvested options on the date of the unbundling were converted to instruments under the 

SGL Share Plan as described in (a). Sibanye employees had to exercise all options that vested proportionately up to the 

date of unbundling. 
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The following information details the options granted under this scheme to Sibanye employees: 
      

   2013 

Number of instruments 

  

PVRS SARS 

Average 

instrument  

price (cps) 

Outstanding at beginning of the year    1 809 535  737 211  106.96 

Movement during the year:      

Granted during the year    393 978  146 822  106.96 

Exercised and released    (1 746 214)  (413 032)  106.96 

Transferred within the Gold Fields group    (2 605)  (57 969)  106.96 

Converted to Sibanye options    (454 694)  (413 032)  106.96 

Outstanding at end of the year    -  -  - 
 

7.  IMPAIRMENTS 
      

Figures in million - SA rand   Notes 2015 2014 2013 

Impairment of property, plant and equipment  10  -  (155.5)  (821.0) 

Impairment of loan to Rand Refinery    -  (329.5)  - 

Impairment of investment in equity-accounted investee  12  -  (19.4)  - 

Total impairments    -  (504.4)  (821.0) 
 

8.  ROYALTIES, AND MINING AND INCOME TAX 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES 

The Company is subject to income taxes in South Africa. Significant judgement is required in determining the liability for 

income taxes due to the complexity of legislation. There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax 

determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Company recognises liabilities for anticipated tax 

audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is 

different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax 

provisions in the period in which such determination is made. 

The Company recognises the net future tax benefit related to deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that the 

deductible temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future. Assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets 

requires the Company to make significant estimates related to expectations of future taxable income. Estimates of future 

taxable income are based on forecast cash flows from operations and the application of existing tax laws in South Africa. 

To the extent that future cash flows and taxable income differ significantly from estimates, the ability of the Company to 

realise the net deferred tax assets recorded at the reporting date could be impacted. 

The mining operations are taxed on a variable rate that increases as the profitability of the operation increases. The 

deferred tax rate used to calculate deferred tax is based on the current estimate of future profitability when the temporary 

differences will reverse based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Depending on the profitability of the operations, the deferred tax rate can consequently be significantly different from year 

to year. Calculating the future profitability of the operations is inherently uncertain and could materially change over time. 

Additionally, future changes in tax laws in South Africa could limit the ability of the Company to obtain tax deductions in 

future periods. 

ACCOUNTING POLICY 

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss except to the 

extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income. 

Current tax is measured on taxable income at the applicable statutory rate enacted or substantively enacted at the 

reporting date. 

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences existing at each reporting date between the tax values of assets and 

liabilities and their carrying amounts. Substantively enacted tax rates are used to determine future anticipated effective tax 

rates which in turn are used in the determination of deferred tax. 
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Deferred tax is not recognised for: 

 temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination 

and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss; 

 temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that the Company is able to control the timing 

of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and 

 taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill. 

These temporary differences are expected to result in taxable or deductible amounts in determining taxable profits for 

future periods when the carrying amount of the asset is recovered or the liability is settled. The principal temporary 

differences arise from depreciation of property, plant and equipment, provisions, unutilised capital allowances and tax 

losses carried forward. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, 

and they relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they 

intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised 

simultaneously. 

Deferred tax assets relating to the carry forward of unutilised tax losses and/or unutilised capital allowances are recognised 

to the extent it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the unutilised tax losses and/or unutilised 

capital allowances can be recovered. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted if recovery 

is no longer probable. 

No provision is made for any potential tax liability on the distribution of retained earnings by the Company. 

8.1 ROYALTIES 

The Mineral and Petroleum Resource Royalty Act 2008 (Royalty Act) imposes a royalty on refined (mineral resources that 

have undergone a comprehensive level of beneficiation such as smelting and refining as defined in Schedule 1 of the 

Royalty Act) and unrefined (mineral resources that have undergone limited beneficiation as defined in Schedule 2 of the 

Royalty Act) minerals payable to the State. The royalty in respect of refined minerals (which include gold refined to 99.5% 

and above and platinum) is calculated by dividing earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) by the product of 12.5 times 

gross revenue calculated as a percentage, plus an additional 0.5%. EBIT refers to taxable mining income (with certain 

exceptions such as no deduction for interest payable and foreign exchange losses) before assessed losses but after 

capital expenditure. A maximum royalty of 5% of mining revenue has been introduced on refined minerals. The effective 

rate of royalty tax payable for the year ended 31 December 2015 was approximately 1.8% of mining revenue (2014: 2.1% 

and 2013: 2.1%). 

      Figures in million - SA rand   Notes 2015 2014 2013 

Current year charge  25  (383.9)  (422.1)  (414.6) 

Total royalties    (383.9)  (422.1)  (414.6) 

8.2 MINING AND INCOME TAX 

The components of mining and income tax are the following: 
      

Figures in million - SA rand   Notes 2015 2014 2013 

Mining tax    (665.5)  (847.9)  (771.0) 

Non-mining tax    (16.0)  (24.8)  (27.7) 

Total current tax  25  (681.5)  (872.7)  (798.7) 

Deferred tax  19  185.1  24.4  514.6 

Total mining and income tax    (496.4)  (848.3)  (284.1) 
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Reconciliation of the Company’s income tax to the maximum South African statutory mining tax rate of 34.0%: 
      

Figures in million - SA rand   Notes 2015 2014 2013 

South African statutory tax rates      

Mining tax1   Y=34-170/X Y=34-170/X Y=34-170/X 

Non-mining tax2   28.0% 28.0% 28.0% 

Company tax rate   28.0% 28.0% 28.0% 

Tax on profit before tax at maximum South African statutory mining tax rate  (767.4)  (1 006.3)  (614.7) 

South African mining tax formula rate adjustment    277.2  340.2  329.6 

Rate adjustment to reflect the company tax rate of 28%    (24.2)  (4.8)  (61.3) 

Non-deductible share-based payments  6  (38.9)  (54.5)  (61.8) 

Net other non-taxable income and non-deductible expenditure    18.8  (122.9)  (89.5) 

Change in estimated deferred tax rate3    (28.8)  -  213.6 

Non-taxable gain on derecognition of financial guarantee liability  14.2  66.9  -  - 

Mining and income tax    (496.4)  (848.3)  (284.1) 

1 Mining tax is determined according to a formula which takes into account the profit and revenue attributable to mining operations. Mining 
taxable income is determined after the deduction of all mining capital expenditure, with the provision that this cannot result in an assessed 
loss. Capital expenditure amounts not deducted are carried forward as unredeemed capital expenditure to be deducted from future mining 
income. Accounting depreciation is ignored for the purpose of calculating mining tax. In the formula above, Y is the percentage rate of tax 
payable and X is the ratio of mining profit, after the deduction of redeemable capital expenditure, to mining revenue expressed as a percentage. 

2 Non-mining income consists primarily of interest income and the guarantee fee received (refer to note 14.1). 
3 The change in the estimated long term deferred tax rate, as a result of applying the mining tax formula as described in footnote 1, at which the 

temporary differences will reverse, amounted to a tax charge of R28.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2015 and a tax credit of 
R213.6 million during the year ended 31 December 2013. 

 

9.  DIVIDENDS 

ACCOUNTING POLICY 

Dividends are recognised only when such dividends are declared. 

Cash flows from dividends paid are classified under operating activities in the statement of cash flows. 

      Figures in million - SA rand    2015 2014 2013 

Dividend declared and paid    658.1  1 005.2  271.9 

Dividend per share (cents)    72  125  37 
 

The dividend declared and paid relates to the final dividend of 62 SA cents per share or R567.1 million in respect of the 

year ended 31 December 2014 declared on 19 February 2015 and the interim dividend of 10 SA cents per share or 

R91.3 million in respect of the six months ended 30 June 2015 declared on 5 August 2015. 

10.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES 

CARRYING VALUE OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

All mining assets are amortised using the units-of-production method where the mine operating plan calls for production 

from proved and probable Mineral Reserves. 

Mobile and other equipment are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the estimate of 

mine life based on proved and probable Mineral Reserves. 

The calculation of the units-of-production rate of amortisation could be impacted to the extent that actual production in the 

future is different from current forecast production based on proved and probable Mineral Reserves. This would generally 

result from the extent that there are significant changes in any of the factors or assumptions used in estimating Mineral 

Reserves. 
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These factors could include: 

 Changes in proved and probable Mineral Reserves; 

 Differences between actual commodity prices and commodity price assumptions; 

 Unforeseen operational issues at mine sites; 

 Changes in capital, operating, mining, processing and reclamation costs, discount rates and foreign exchange rates; 

and 

 Changes in Mineral Reserves could similarly impact the useful lives of assets depreciated on a straight-line basis, 

where those lives are limited to the life of the mine. 

The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units and individual assets have been determined based on the higher of 

value-in-use calculations and fair value less cost to sell. These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions. 

It is reasonably possible that the gold price assumption may change which may then impact the Company’s estimated life 

of mine determinant and may then require a material adjustment to the carrying value of property, plant and equipment. 

The Company reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the 

carrying amount may not be recoverable by comparing expected future cash flows to these carrying values. Assets are 

grouped at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely independent of cash flows of other assets and 

liabilities. If there are indications that impairment may have occurred, estimates are prepared of expected future cash flows 

of each group of assets. Expected future cash flows used to determine the value in use and fair value less costs to sell of 

property, plant and equipment are inherently uncertain and could materially change over time. They are significantly 

affected by a number of factors including reserves and production estimates, together with economic factors such as spot 

and future gold prices, discount rates, foreign currency exchange rates, estimates of costs to produce reserves and future 

capital expenditure. 

MINERAL RESERVES ESTIMATES 

Mineral Reserves are estimates of the amount of product that can be economically and legally extracted from the 

Company’s properties. In order to calculate the reserves, estimates and assumptions are required about a range of 

geological, technical and economic factors, including but not limited to quantities, grades, production techniques, recovery 

rates, production costs, transport costs, commodity demand, commodity prices and exchange rates. 

Estimating the quantity and grade of the Mineral Reserves requires the size, shape and depth of orebodies to be 

determined by analysing geological data such as the logging and assaying of drill samples. This process may require 

complex and difficult geological judgements and calculations to interpret the data. 

The Company is required to determine and report, inter alia, on the Mineral Reserves in accordance with the South African 

Code for Reporting of Exploration Results, Mineral Resources and Mineral Reserves (SAMREC). 

Estimates of Mineral Reserves may change from period to period due to the change in economic assumptions used to 

estimate Mineral Reserves and due to additional geological data becoming available during the course of operations. 

Changes in reported proven and probable reserves may affect the Company’s financial results and position in a number of 

ways, including the following: 

 Asset carrying values may be affected due to changes in estimated cash flows; 

 Depreciation and amortisation charges to profit or loss may change as these are calculated on the units-of production 

method, or where the useful lives of assets change; 

 Decommissioning site restoration and environmental provisions may change where changes in ore reserves affect 

expectations about the timing or cost of these activities; and 

 The carrying value of deferred tax assets may change due to changes in estimates of the likely recovery of the tax 

benefits. 
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PRE-PRODUCTION 

The Company assesses the stage of each mine construction project to determine when a mine moves into the production 

stage. The criteria used to assess the start date are determined based on the unique nature of each mine construction 

project. The Company considers various relevant criteria to assess when the mine is substantially complete, ready for its 

intended use and moves into the production stage. Some of the criteria would include, but are not limited to the following: 

 the level of capital expenditure compared to the construction cost estimates; 

 ability to produce metal in saleable form (within specifications); and 

 ability to sustain commercial levels of production of metal. 

When a mine construction project moves into the production stage, the capitalisation of certain mine construction costs 

ceases and costs are expensed, except for capitalisable costs related to mining asset additions or improvements, 

underground mine development or ore reserve development. 

ACCOUNTING POLICY 

MINERAL AND SURFACE RIGHTS 

Mineral and surface rights are recorded at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. When 

there is little likelihood of a mineral right being exploited, or the carrying amount has exceeded its recoverable amount, 

impairment is recognised in profit or loss in the year that such determination is made. 

MINE DEVELOPMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE 

Mining assets, including mine development and infrastructure costs and mine plant facilities, are recorded at cost less 

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

These costs which include the purchase price of assets used in the construction of the mine, expenditure incurred to 

evaluate and develop new ore bodies, to define mineralisation in existing ore bodies and to establish or expand productive 

capacity, are capitalised until commercial levels of production are achieved, at which times the costs are amortised as set 

out below. 

Development of ore bodies includes the development of shaft systems and waste rock removal that allows access to 

reserves that are economically recoverable in the future. Subsequent to this, costs are capitalised if the criteria for 

recognition as an asset are met. Access to individual orebodies exploited by the Company is limited to the time span of the 

respective mining leases. 

LAND 

Land is shown at cost and is not depreciated. 

OTHER ASSETS 

Non-mining assets are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. These assets 

include the assets of the mining operations not included in mine development and infrastructure, borrowing costs, mineral 

and surface rights, land and all the assets of the non-mining operations. 

AMORTISATION AND DEPRECIATION OF MINING ASSETS 

Amortisation and depreciation is determined to give a fair and systematic charge in profit or loss taking into account the 
nature of a particular ore body and the method of mining that ore body. To achieve this, the following calculation methods 
are used: 

 Mining assets, including mine development and infrastructure costs, mine plant facilities and evaluation costs, are 

amortised over the life of the mine using the units-of-production method, based on estimated proved and probable 

Mineral Reserves above infrastructure. 

 Proved and probable Mineral Reserves reflect estimated quantities of economically recoverable reserves, which can be 

recovered in future from known mineral deposits. 

 Certain mining plant and equipment included in mine development and infrastructure are depreciated on a straight-line 

basis over their estimated useful lives. 
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DEPRECIATION OF NON-MINING ASSETS 

Non-mining assets are recorded at cost and depreciated on a straight-line basis over their current expected useful lives to 

their residual values as follows: 

 Vehicles 20% 

 Computers 33.3% 

 Furniture and equipment 10% 

The assets’ useful lives, depreciation methods and residual values are reassessed at each reporting date and adjusted if 

appropriate. 

IMPAIRMENT 

Recoverability of the carrying values of long-term assets or cash-generating units (CGU) of the Company are reviewed 

whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that such carrying value may not be recoverable. To determine 

whether a long-term asset or CGU may be impaired, the higher of value in use (defined as: the present value of future 

cash flows expected to be derived from an asset or CGU) or fair value less costs to sell (defined as: the price that would be 

received to sell an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measured rate, less the costs of 

disposal) is compared to the carrying value of the asset/unit. 

A CGU is defined by the Company as the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely 

independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets. Generally for the Company this represents an 

individual operating mine, including mines which are part of a larger mine complex. The costs attributable to individual 

shafts of a mine are impaired if the shaft is closed. 

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated to the individual 

assets in the CGU. 

When any infrastructure is closed down or placed on care and maintenance during the year, any carrying value attributable 

to that infrastructure is impaired. Expenditure incurred on care and maintenance is recognised in profit or loss. 

When the review of the events or changes in circumstances of an asset or CGU that was previously impaired indicate that 

such historical carrying value is recoverable, the impairment is reversed. The impairment is only reversed to such an 

amount that the new carrying amount does not exceed the historical carrying amount. Reversal of impairment losses are 

recognised in profit or loss. Reversal of impairment recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated to the individual assets in 

the CGU. 

GAIN OR LOSS ON DISPOSAL 

Any gain or loss on disposal on an item of property, plant and equipment (calculated as the net proceeds from disposal 

and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in profit or loss. 

EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION EXPENDITURE 

All exploration and evaluation expenditure, prior to obtaining the legal rights to explore a specific area, is recognised in 

profit or loss.  After the legal rights to explore are obtained, exploration and evaluation expenditure, comprising the costs of 

acquiring prospecting rights and directly attributable exploration expenditure, is capitalised as a separate class of property, 

plant and equipment or intangible assets, on a project-by-project basis, pending determination of the technical feasibility 

and commercial viability. 

The technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting a mineral resource is generally considered to be 

determinable through a feasibility study and when proven reserves are determinable to exist. Upon determination of proven 

reserves, exploration and evaluation assets attributable to those reserves are first tested for impairment and then 

reclassified from exploration and evaluation assets to another appropriate class of property, plant and equipment. 

Subsequently, all cost directly incurred to prepare an identified mineral asset for production is capitalised to mine 

development assets. Amortisation of these assets commences once these assets are available for use, which is expected 

to be when the mine is in commercial production. These assets will be measured at cost less accumulated amortisation 

and impairment losses. 
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Figures in million - SA rand   Notes Total 

Mine 

 

development, 

infrastructure 

and other 

Land, 

mineral 

rights and 

rehabilitation 

Exploration 

and 

evaluation 

assets 

31 December 2015       

Cost       

Balance at beginning of the year    46 661.3  45 090.8  1 316.9  253.6 

Additions    2 728.1  2 710.5  -  17.6 

Change in estimate of rehabilitation assets  21  (317.9)  -  (317.9)  - 

Disposals    (33.7)  (33.5)  (0.2)  - 

Balance at end of the year    49 037.8  47 767.8  998.8  271.2 

Accumulated amortisation, depreciation and impairment       

Balance at beginning of the year    31 266.2  30 375.6  890.6  - 

Amortisation and depreciation  4  2 915.1  2 882.8  32.3  - 

Disposals    (22.1)  (22.1)  -  - 

Balance at end of the year    34 159.2  33 236.3  922.9  - 
       

Carrying value at end of the year    14 878.6  14 531.5  75.9  271.2 

 
       

Figures in million - SA rand   Notes Total 

Mine 

development, 

infrastructure 

and other 

Land, 

mineral 

rights and 

rehabilitation 

Exploration 

and 

evaluation 

assets 

31 December 2014       

Cost       

Balance at beginning of the year    43 776.4  42 193.0  1 339.1  244.3 

Additions    2 939.8  2 929.7  0.8  9.3 

Change in estimates of rehabilitation assets  21  (21.6)  -  (21.6)  - 

Disposals    (33.3)  (31.9)  (1.4)  - 

Balance at end of the year    46 661.3  45 090.8  1 316.9  253.6 

Accumulated amortisation, depreciation and impairment       

Balance at beginning of the year    28 686.9  27 816.7  870.2  - 

Amortisation and depreciation  4  2 921.7  2 873.7  48.0  - 

Impairment  7  155.5  155.5  -  - 

Reversal of impairment    (474.1)  (448.1)  (26.0)  - 

Disposals    (23.8)  (22.2)  (1.6)  - 

Balance at end of the year    31 266.2  30 375.6  890.6  - 
       

Carrying value at end of the year    15 395.1  14 715.2  426.3  253.6 

IMPAIRMENT 

The Python processing plant was decommissioned in July 2014 due to process design flaws. As a result a decision was 
taken to impair the entire carrying value of the Python plant by R155.5 million. 

REVERSAL OF IMPAIRMENT AT BEATRIX WEST 

During the six months ended 30 June 2013 the mining assets of Beatrix West Section was impaired by R821.0 million due 

to a fire during February 2013 which affected approximately 38% of the planned production area, impacting on the 

commercial viability of the Beatrix West Section. In addition management entered into a section 189 consultation with 

affected stakeholders, agreeing that ore reserve development would largely be suspended and that the remaining ore 

reserves would be mined to completion. 

Due to the positive results of the restructured Beatrix West Section it returned to profitability and as a result a decision was 

taken to reverse the impairment recorded during the six months ended 30 June 2013. This resulted in a R474.1 million 

reversal of impairment to the historical carrying value less depreciation subsequent to 30 June 2013. 

The reversal was based on the estimated fair value less cost to sell over the life of mine. The fair value was calculated 

based on expected discounted cash flows from the expected gold reserves and costs to extract the gold. 
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Figures in million - SA rand   Notes Total 

Mine 

development, 

infrastructure 

and other 

Land, 

mineral 

rights and 

rehabilitation 

Exploration 

and 

evaluation 

assets 

31 December 2013       

Cost       

Balance at beginning of the year    41 086.0  39 342.0  1 499.7  244.3 

Additions    2 865.7  2 865.7  -  - 

Change in estimates of rehabilitation assets  21  (160.6)  -  (160.6)  - 

Disposals    (14.7)  (14.7)  -  - 

Balance at end of the year    43 776.4  42 193.0  1 339.1  244.3 

Accumulated amortisation, depreciation and impairment       

Balance at beginning of the year    24 795.7  24 054.0  741.7  - 

Amortisation and depreciation  4  3 083.4  2 999.3  84.1  - 

Impairment  7  821.0  776.6  44.4  - 

Disposals     (13.2)  (13.2)  -  - 

Balance at end of the year    28 686.9  27 816.7  870.2  - 
       

Carrying value at end of the year    15 089.5  14 376.3  468.9  244.3 
 

11.  INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 

ACCOUNTING POLICY 

The carrying value of a subsidiary is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. 

Loss of control 

When the Company loses its power over the relevant activities of a subsidiary, it derecognises the investment in subsidiary 

and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at 

fair value when control is lost. 
      

Figures in million - SA rand   Notes 2015  2014 2013 

The Company has a 100% beneficial holding in:      

Agrihold Proprietary Limited    16.4  16.4  16.4 

St Helena Proprietary Limited1    12.1  12.1  11.2 

Sibanye Gold Protection Services Limited1    21.5  18.9  13.8 

Sibanye Gold Shared Services Proprietary Limited1    19.8  18.6  12.4 

Sibanye Gold Academy Proprietary Limited1    7.3  6.4  3.1 

Witwatersrand Consolidated Gold Resources Proprietary Limited    415.3  415.3  - 

Golden Hytec Farming Proprietary Limited2    -  -  - 

Golden Oils Proprietary Limited2    -  -  - 

M Janse van Rensburg Proprietary Limited2    -  -  - 

Milen Mining Proprietary Limited2    -  -  - 

West Driefontein Gold Mining Company Proprietary Limited2    -  -  - 

Witwatersrand Deep Investments Proprietary Limited2    -  -  - 

The Company has a less than 100% beneficial holding in:      

Newshelf 1114 Proprietary Limited3    709.2  709.2  - 

Living Gold Proprietary Limited4  12  -  -  118.6 

Bushbuck Ventures Proprietary Limited2,5    -  -  - 

Oryx Ventures Proprietary Limited2,5    -  -  - 

Sub-total    1 201.6  1 196.9  175.5 

Loss on loss of control of Living Gold4    -  -  (113.6) 

Fair value of Living Gold transferred to equity-accounted 

investments4  12  -  -  (5.0) 

Balance at end of the year    1 201.6  1 196.9  56.9 
 

1 The increase of these investments relates to equity-settled share-based payments, relating to Sibanye shares, issued to employees of these 

subsidiaries. 

2 This is a nominal amount shown as zero due to rounding. 

3 The company has a 76% holding in Newshelf 1114 Proprietary Limited (Newshelf 1114), which consists of a 100% shareholding in Rand Uranium 

Proprietary Limited (Rand Uranium) and Ezulwini Proprietary Limited (Ezulwini), collectively referred to as Cooke. 

4 Living Gold Proprietary Limited, was a subsidiary of Sibanye until 31 December 2013. Refer to note 12 for more details on Living Gold.  

5 The company has a 95% beneficial holding in Bushbuck Ventures Proprietary Limited and Oryx Ventures Proprietary Limited. 
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12.  INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES 

Rand Refinery implemented a new Enterprise Resource Planning system in April 2013. An imbalance was detected 

between physical gold and silver on hand (physical inventory) and what Rand Refinery owed its depositors and bullion 

bankers (ownership) per the metallurgical trial balance. Rand Refinery’s investigations revealed that the shortfall could 

have been attributed to a number of factors. Various internal projects, campaigns and external reviews were performed to 

reduce the risk of recurrence. The carrying value of Rand Refinery remains an area of estimation and uncertainty until the 

root cause of the imbalance is determined.  

ACCOUNTING POLICY 

An associate is an investment over which the Company exercises significant influence, but not control. Associates are 

accounted for from the date that significant influence is obtained to the date that the Company ceases to have significant 

influence. 

Associates are initially accounted for at fair value when significant influence is obtained and subsequently at cost (initial  fair 

value) less accumulated impairment losses. 

The Company holds the following investments in associates: 
      

Figures in million - SA rand    2015 2014 2013 

Rand Refinery    -  19.4  19.4 

Living Gold    5.0  5.0  5.0 

Balance before impairment    5.0  24.4  24.4 

Impairment on Rand Refinery    -  (19.4)  - 

Balance at end of the year    5.0  5.0  24.4 

RAND REFINERY 

Sibanye has a 33.1% interest in Rand Refinery, a company incorporated in the Republic of South Africa, which is involved 

in the refining of bullion and by-products sourced from, inter alia, South African and foreign gold producing mining 

companies. The investment has been equity-accounted since 1 July 2002. 

On 18 December 2014, Rand Refinery drew down R1.029 billion under a R1.2 billion subordinated shareholders loan (the 

Facility), with Sibanye’s proportional share being R384.6 million. Amounts drawn down under the Facility are repayable 

within two years from the first draw down date. If the loan is not repaid within two years, it will automatically convert into 

equity in Rand Refinery. Interest under the Facility is at JIBAR plus a margin of 3.5%. Sibanye has subordinated all claims 

it might have against Rand Refinery as part of the Facility agreement. During the year Rand Refinery paid R37.3 million 

(2014: R1.2 million) interest on the loan. 

LIVING GOLD 

Sibanye has a 50% interest in Living Gold Proprietary Limited (Living Gold), a company incorporated in the Republic of 
South Africa, involved in growing and processing agricultural products. Living Gold was a subsidiary until 31 December 
2013. Living Gold’s management acquired a 30% interest from Sibanye in 2013 (2012: 10%) and exercised its option to 
acquire a further 10% during March 2014. This allows the management of Living Gold to appoint 50% of the directors and 
manage the entity. Sibanye has assessed that the management of Living Gold controlled the entity in terms of IFRS 10 
Consolidated Financial Statements, before the additional 10% was acquired. As a result Living Gold was de-recognised as 
a subsidiary, and accounted for as an associate. 
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13.  ENVIRONMENTAL REHABILITATION OBLIGATION FUNDS 

ACCOUNTING POLICY 

The Company’s rehabilitation obligation funds includes equity-linked investments that are fair valued at each reporting date. 
The fair value is calculated with reference to underlying equity instruments using industry valuation techniques and 
appropriate models. While Sibanye’s management believes that these assumptions are appropriate, the use of different 
assumptions could have a material impact on the fair value of the investments. 

Annual contributions are made to dedicated environmental rehabilitation obligation funds to fund the estimated cost of 

rehabilitation during and at the end of the life of the relevant mine. The amounts contributed to these funds are included 

under non-current assets and are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Interest earned on monies paid to 

rehabilitation funds is accrued on a time proportion basis and is recorded as investment income. 

In addition, bank guarantees are provided for funding shortfalls of the environmental rehabilitation obligations. 
      

Figures in million - SA rand    2015 2014 2013 

Environmental rehabilitation obligation funds      

Balance at beginning of the year    1 810.1  1 588.1  1 331.1 

Contributions    75.2  67.3  172.3 

Investment income    110.2  92.0  84.7 

Fair value adjustment1    8.5  62.7  - 

Balance at end of the year    2 004.0  1 810.1  1 588.1 

Environmental rehabilitation obligation funds comprise of the 

following:      

Restricted cash2    131.0  100.8  73.5 

Funds    1 873.0  1 709.3  1 514.6 

1 The environmental rehabilitation trust fund includes equity-linked investments that are fair valued at each reporting date. 
2 The funds are set aside to serve as collateral against the guarantees made to the Department of Minerals and Resources (DMR) for 

environmental rehabilitation obligations. 

14.  FINANCIAL GUARANTEE 

ACCOUNTING POLICY 

Financial guarantee contracts are accounted for as financial instruments and are recognised initially at fair value and are 

subsequently measured at the higher of the amount determined in accordance with IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent 

Liabilities and Assets, and the initial amount recognised less cumulative amortisation. 

As of 18 February 2013, the Gold Fields group no longer guarantee any debt of Sibanye, similarly Sibanye was released 

from all of its obligations as guarantor under Gold Fields group debt, except, Sibanye remained a joint guarantor of the 

US$1 billion 4.875% guaranteed notes (the Notes) issued by Gold Fields Orogen Holding (BVI) Limited (Orogen), a 

subsidiary of Gold Fields. 

An indemnity agreement (the Indemnity Agreement) was entered into between Gold Fields, Sibanye, Gold Fields 

Operations (GFO) Limited and Gold Fields Holding Company (BVI) Limited (GF Holdings) (collectively the Guarantors) 

pursuant to which the Guarantors (other than Sibanye) hold Sibanye harmless from and against any and all liabilities and 

expenses which may be incurred by Sibanye under or in connection with the Notes, including any payment obligations by 

Sibanye to the note holders or the trustee of the Notes pursuant to the guarantee of the Notes. 

The Company initially recognised the financial guarantee liability at fair value of the guarantee in connection with the Notes 

and subsequently amortised over the remaining period of the Notes. 

As of 18 February 2013, the Company raised a receivable under the financial guarantee asset for the future guarantee fee 

income that Orogen was obliged to pay bi-annually to Sibanye until it was released as a guarantor under the Notes. 

During March 2015 Gold Fields approached the note holders through a consent solicitation process to release Sibanye of 

its obligations as a guarantor under the Notes. On 22 April 2015 the note holders approved the various resolutions to 

release Sibanye as guarantor. The release became effective on 24 April 2015 when all the conditions to the extraordinary 

resolution were met. As part of the agreement Sibanye paid a guarantee release fee of US$5 million to Orogen, and 

derecognised the financial guarantee asset and liability. 
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14.1 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE ASSET 

      Figures in million - SA rand    2015 2014 2013 

Balance at beginning of the year    282.6  290.2  - 

Initial recognition at fair value    -  -  282.3 

Guarantee fees received    (9.6)  (53.6)  (47.0) 

Interest income    4.9  15.0  12.3 

Gain on foreign exchange differences    15.9  31.0  42.6 

Loss on derecognition of financial guarantee asset    (293.8)  -  - 

Balance at end of the year    -  282.6  290.2 

Reconciliation of the non-current and current portion of the 

guarantee asset:      

Financial guarantee asset    -  282.6  290.2 

Current portion of financial guarantee asset    -  (57.1)  (51.7) 

Non-current portion of financial guarantee asset    -  225.5  238.5 

The financial guarantee asset was discounted to a present value at 5.38%, which is a reflection of the interest rate of the 

Notes adjusted for risk factors. 

14.2 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE LIABILITY 

      Figures in million - SA rand    2015 2014 2013 

Balance at beginning of the year    197.0  206.6  196.4 

Amortisation of guarantee liability1    (11.7)  (31.8)  (28.2) 

Foreign exchange loss    11.6  22.2  38.4 

Gain on derecognition of financial guarantee liability    (196.9)  -  - 

Balance at end of the year    -  197.0  206.6 

1 The amortisation charge of the guarantee liability is disclosed as part of the (loss)/gain on financial instruments in profit or loss. 

14.3 NET LOSS ON DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL GUARANTEE ASSET AND LIABILITY 

      Figures in million - SA rand      2015 

Guarantee release fee      (61.4) 

Loss on derecognition of financial guarantee asset      (293.8) 

Gain on derecognition of financial guarantee liability      196.9 

Net loss on derecognition of the financial guarantee asset and liability   (158.3) 
 

15.  INVENTORIES 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES 

Costs that are incurred in or benefit the productive process are accumulated gold-in-process and product inventories. Net 

realisable value tests are performed at least annually and represent the estimated future sales price of the product based 

on prevailing spot commodity prices at the reporting date, less estimated costs to complete production and bring the 

product to sale. Future commodity price fluctuations could negatively impact the valuation of inventory. If any inventories 

are expected to be realised in the long-term horizon, estimated future sales prices are used for valuation purposes. 

ACCOUNTING POLICY 

The Company’s inventories comprise consumable stores. Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

The Company values gold-in-process when it can be reliably measured. Consumable stores are valued at weighted 

average cost after appropriate provision for surplus and slow-moving items. 
      

Figures in million - SA rand    2015 2014 2013 

Consumable stores    45.3  19.8  4.0 

Total inventories    45.3  19.8  4.0 
1The cost of consumable stores consumed during the year and included in operating cost amounted to R3,123.3 million 

(2014: R2,954.4 million and 2013: R2,720.7 million). 
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16.  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 

ACCOUNTING POLICY 

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently carried at amortised cost less allowance 

for impairment. Estimates made for impairment are based on a review of all outstanding amounts at period end. 

Irrecoverable amounts are written off during the period in which they are identified. 

      Figures in million - SA rand    2015 2014 2013 

Trade receivables - gold sales    810.1  309.5  473.3 

Other trade receivables    51.6  87.3  44.1 

Prepayments    113.9  61.5  115.0 

Value added tax    304.6  226.2  192.9 

Payroll debtors    92.8  83.8  52.2 

Interest receivable    7.1  11.6  41.2 

Total trade and other receivables    1 380.1  779.9  918.7 
 

17.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

ACCOUNTING POLICY 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term, highly liquid investments readily 

convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to insignificant risk of changes in value and are measured at amortised 

cost which is deemed to be fair value as they have a short-term maturity.Bank overdrafts are included within current 

liabilities in the statement of financial position. 

      Figures in million - SA rand    2015 2014 2013 

Cash at the bank and on hand    118.4  83.4  722.7 

Restricted cash1    -  -  410.0 

Total cash and cash equivalents    118.4  83.4  1 132.7 

1 At 31 December 2013 R410.0 million was in an escrow account, being the consideration for the Wits Gold acquisition. 

18.  STATED SHARE CAPITAL 

ACCOUNTING POLICY 

ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL 

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are 

recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects. 

      Figures in thousand    2015 2014 2013 

Authorised number of shares     2 000 000  1 000 000  1 000 000 

Reconciliation of issued number of shares       

Number of shares in issue at beginning of the year    898 840  735 079  1 

Shares issued under SGL Share Plan    17 300  6 866  3 430 

Shares issued as consideration for the acquisition of Cooke    -  156 895  - 

Shares issued on unbundling    -  -  731 648 

Number of shares in issue at end of the year     916 140  898 840  735 079 

The authorised share capital was increased to 2,000,000,000 during the year ended 31 December 2015. 

In terms of the general authority granted by the shareholders of the Company on 12 May 2015, the Board may issue 

authorised but unissued ordinary share capital representing not more than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company 

at 31 December 2014 in accordance with the memorandum of incorporation and the Companies Act. 

On 15 May 2014 the Company issued 156,894,754 shares for the acquisition of Cooke in terms of the shareholder’s 

approval on 5 November 2013 that the Company may issue 150 million ordinary shares, or such number of shares that 

represent 17% of the issued share capital, on a fully diluted basis for the acquisition. 

All the Sibanye ordinary shares rank pari passu in all respects, there being no conversion or exchange rights attached 

thereto, and all of the ordinary shares will have equal rights to participate in capital, dividend and profit distributions by the 

Company. 
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19.  DEFERRED TAX 

ACCOUNTING POLICY 

Refer to note 8 for details of the accounting policy on deferred tax. 

The detailed components of the net deferred tax liabilities which result from the differences between the amounts of assets 

and liabilities recognised for financial reporting and tax purposes in different accounting periods are: 
      

Figures in million - SA rand    2015 2014 2013 

Deferred tax liabilities      

Mining assets    3 837.3  3 928.4  3 845.7 

Environmental rehabilitation obligation funds    498.7  452.1  414.9 

Other    17.3  93.3  108.8 

Gross deferred tax liabilities    4 353.3  4 473.8  4 369.4 

Deferred tax assets      

Environmental rehabilitation obligation    (418.2)  (464.0)  (437.8) 

Other provisions    (276.6)  (216.0)  (199.0) 

Share-based payment obligation    (135.4)  (85.6)  - 

Gross deferred tax assets    (830.2)  (765.6)  (636.8) 
      

Net deferred tax liabilities    3 523.1  3 708.2  3 732.6 
      

Reconciliation of the deferred tax balance:      

Balance at beginning of the year    3 708.2  3 732.6  4 168.1 

Deferred tax recognised in profit or loss  8.2  (185.1)  (24.4)  (514.6) 

Deferred tax recognised in equity     -  -  79.1 

Balance at end of the year    3 523.1  3 708.2  3 732.6 
 

20.  BORROWINGS 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES 

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value. Expected future cash flows used to determine the fair value of borrowings 

are inherently uncertain and could materially change over time. They are significantly affected by a number of factors 

including reserves and production estimates, together with economic factors such as the expected commodity price, 

foreign currency exchange rates, estimates of production costs, future capital expenditure and discount rates. 

ACCOUNTING POLICY 

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, where applicable and subsequently 

measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the 

liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. 
      

Figures in million - SA rand    2015 2014 2013 

(a) R4.5 billion Facilities    1 961.6  1 979.5  1 990.9 

Total borrowings    1 961.6  1 979.5  1 990.9 

Reconciliation of the non-current and current portion of the borrowings:    

Total borrowings    1 961.6  1 979.5  1 990.9 

Current portion of borrowings    (1 961.6)  (498.1)  (499.5) 

Non-current portion of borrowings    -  1 481.4  1 491.4 
 

The current portion of borrowings will be repaid out of operational cash flows or it will be refinanced by utilising available 

Company facilities. 
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(a)  R4.5 BILLION FACILITIES 

On 13 December 2013, Sibanye cancelled and replaced the Bridge Loan Facilities (refer below) by drawing R2 billion 

under the R4.5 billion Facilities (the R4.5 billion Facilities), the balance may be applied to ongoing capital expenditure, 

working capital and general corporate expenditure requirements, where required. 
     

Terms of the R4.5 billion Facilities 

Facility: - R2.5 billion revolving credit facility (RCF) 

 - R2.0 billion term loan facility (Term Loan) 

Interest rate: JIBAR 

Interest rate margin: - RCF: 2.85%  

 - Term Loan: 2.75%  

Term of loan: Three years 

Repayment period: The Term Loan will repaid in equal six-monthly instalments of R250 million, with the 

R750 million balance and any amounts outstanding under the RCF due for settlement on 

final maturity, being 13 December 2016. 

Security and Guarantors: The Facilities are unsecured and guaranteed by Rand Uranium and Ezulwini. 
 

 

      Figures in million - SA rand   Notes 2015 2014 2013 

Balance at beginning of the year    1 979.5  1 990.9  - 

Loans raised    1 000.0  884.6  2 000.0 

Loans repaid    (1 020.9)  (900.0)  - 

Unwinding of amortised cost  5  3.0  4.0  (9.1) 

Balance at end of the year    1 961.6  1 979.5  1 990.9 

Reconciliation of facilities:      

Term loan    998.0  1 494.9  1 990.9 

RCF    963.6  484.6  - 

(b)  BRIDGE LOAN FACILITIES 

On 28 November 2012, Sibanye entered into a R6.0 billion term loan and RCF (the Bridge Loan Facilities) reducing to 

R5.0 billion as detailed below. 

Terms of the Bridge Loan Facilities 

Facility: - R2.0 billion RCF (Facility A) increased to R3.0 billion after it was amended in July 2013 

 - R4.0 billion term loan facility (Facility B) reduced to R3.0 billion after it was amended in 

July 2013 

 - Facility A and B would have reduced to R2.5 billion on the earliest of the Company 

declaring a final dividend in respect of 2013 or 12 months after the unbundling date 

Interest rate: JIBAR 

Interest rate margin: - 3.0% for 12 months after unbundling 

 - 3.5% for last six months of the facilities 

 - If Sibanye was not released as guarantor under the Notes within six months of 

unbundling, being 18 August 2013, the margin would have increased to 3.25% and 3.75% 

for the seven to 12 month and 13 to 18 month periods after unbundling, respectively 

Term of loan: 18 months after the unbundling date 

Repayment period: Full payment of the outstanding amount on maturity of the loan, being 18 August 2014 

Cancellation: These facilities were cancelled and repaid on 13 December 2013 
 

 

      Figures in million - SA rand    2015 2014 2013 

Loans raised    -  -  4 570.0 

Loans repaid    -  -  (4 570.0) 

Balance at end of the year    -  -  - 
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(c)  LONG-TERM CREDIT FACILITIES 

Sibanye and GFO (collectively the Borrowers) entered into various RCFs with some of the major banks in South Africa with 

tenors between three and five years. The purpose of these facilities was to finance capital expenditure, general corporate 

and working capital requirements and to refinance existing borrowings. 

Terms of the Revolving credit facilities 

Facility: - R1.0 billion RCF entered into on 9 December 2009 

 - R500.0 million RCF entered into on 8 March 2010 

 - R2.0 billion RCF entered into on 15 December 2011 

Interest rate: JIBAR 

Interest rate margin: - R1.0 billion RCF: 3.00% 

 - R500.0 million RCF: 2.85% 

 - R2.0 billion RCF: 1.95% 

Term of loan: - R1.0 billion RCF matures on 30 June 2013, being 3.5 years 

 - R500.0 million RCF maturing on 10 March 2013, being three years 

 - R2.0 billion RCF maturing on 19 December 2016, being five years 

Repayment period: Full payment of outstanding amounts were due on maturity 

Guarantors: Gold Fields and certain of its subsidiaries: GF Holdings, GFO, Orogen, Newshelf 899 

Proprietary Limited and Sibanye. 

Cancelation: These facilities were cancelled and repaid on 18 February 2013 
 

 

      Figures in million - SA rand    2015 2014 2013 

Balance at beginning of the year    -  -  3 000.0 

Loans raised    -  -  500.0 

Loans repaid    -  -  (3 500.0) 

Balance at end of the year    -  -  - 
 

(d)  US$350 MILLION REVOLVING CREDIT FACILITY 

On 24 August 2015 Sibanye entered into a US$300 million syndicated RCF agreement. Subsequent to year end the facility 

increased to US$350 million. The purpose of the facility was to finance ongoing capital expenditure, working capital and 

general corporate expenditure requirements which may include the financing of future acquisitions of business 

combinations. 

Terms of the Revolving credit facility 

Facility: - US$350 million RCF (31 December 2015: US$300 million RCF) 

Interest rate: - LIBOR 

Interest rate margin: - 2% per annum 

Utilisation fees: Where the total outstanding loans under the RCF fall within the range of the percentage of 

the total loan as set out below, Sibanye shall pay an utilisation fee equal to the percentage 

per annum set out opposite such percentage range.  

 % of the total loans  Utilisation fee 

 Less than or equal to 33⅓%  0.15% 

 Greater than 33⅓% and less than or equal to 66⅔%   0.30% 

 Greater than 66⅔%  0.50% 

Term of loan: Three years   

Security and Guarantors: The facility is unsecured and guaranteed by Rand Uranium 

The facility was undrawn as at 31 December 2015. 

  



NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 

 

  Sibanye Gold Company Financial Statements 2015 49 
 

 

(e)  US$150 MILLION BRIDGE FACILITY 

On 5 October 2015 Sibanye entered into a US$300 million acquisition facility agreement with HSBC Bank plc as sole 

arranger for the purpose of providing funding, if required for the Aquarius Platinum Limited (Aquarius) acquisition (the 

Bridge Facility). The Bridge Facility can only be drawn on completion of the Aquarius acquisition. Subsequent to year end 

the Bridge Facility was reduced to US$150 million. 

Terms of the bridge loan facility 

Facility: - US$150 million (31 December 2015: US$300 million)  

Interest rate: - LIBOR 

Interest rate margin: - Month 0 - 6: 2.25% per annum. 

 - Month 7 - 9: 3.00% per annum. 

 - Month 10 - 12: 3.50% per annum. 

 - Month 13 - 18: 4.25% per annum. 

Term of loan: 12 months from completion of the Aquarius acquisition with Sibanye’s option to extend for 

another six months (18 months from completion) 

Security and Guarantors: Loans are unsecured and guaranteed by Rand Uranium  

The Bridge Facility can only be drawn on completion of the Aquarius Transaction which is expected to be in the first half of 

2016, thus the facility was undrawn as at 31 December 2015. 

(f)  SHORT-TERM CREDIT FACILITIES 

Sibanye has uncommitted loan facilities with various banks to fund the capital expenditure and working capital 

requirements at its operations. These facilities had no fixed terms, are short-term in nature and interest rates are market 

related. 

      Figures in million - SA rand    2015 2014 20131 

Balance at beginning of the year    -  -  1 220.0 

Loans raised    552.0  739.0  550.0 

Loans repaid    (552.0)  (739.0)  (1 770.0) 

Balance at end of the year    -  -  - 

1 Borrowings under these facilities were guaranteed by Gold Fields. On the date of unbundling, these facilities were refinanced by drawing 
down under the Bridge Loan Facilities as detailed in (b). 

 
      

Figures in million - SA rand    2015 2014 2013 

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate 

changes and the contractual repricing dates at the reporting 

dates are as follows:      

Floating rate with exposure to change in JIBAR    1 961.6  1 979.5  1 990.9 

Non-current borrowings exposed to interest rate changes    1 961.6  1 979.5  1 990.9 
      

The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities:      

Committed    6 198.4  1 494.9  2 500.0 

Uncommitted    548.0  484.6  499.7 

Total undrawn facilities    6 746.4  1 979.5  2 999.7 
      

All of the above facilities have floating rates. The uncommitted 

facilities have no expiry dates. The undrawn committed 

facilities have the following expiry dates:      

– within one year   1 536.4  -  - 

– later than one year and not later than two years    -  1 494.9  - 

– later than two years and not later than three years    4 662.0  -  2 500.0 

Total undrawn committed facilities    6 198.4  1 494.9  2 500.0 
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21.  ENVIRONMENTAL REHABILITATION OBLIGATION 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES 

The Company’s mining and exploration activities are subject to various laws and regulations governing the protection of 

the environment. The Company recognises management’s best estimate for asset retirement obligations in the period in 

which they are incurred. Actual costs incurred in future periods could differ materially from the estimates. Additionally, 

future changes to environmental laws and regulations, life of mine estimates and discount rates could affect the carrying 

amount of this provision. 

ACCOUNTING POLICY 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation, legal or constructive resulting from past events 

and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a 

reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

Long-term environmental obligations are based on the Company’s environmental management plans, in compliance with 

applicable environmental and regulatory requirements. 

The estimated costs of rehabilitation are reviewed annually and adjusted as appropriate for changes in legislation, 

technology or other circumstances. Cost estimates are not reduced by the potential proceeds from the sale of assets or 

from plant clean up at closure. 

Based on disturbances to date, the net present value of expected rehabilitation cost estimates is recognised and provided 

for in full in the financial statements. The estimates are reviewed annually and are discounted using a risk-free rate that is 

adjusted to reflect the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. 

Annual changes in the provision consist of finance costs relating to the change in the present value of the provision and 

inflationary increases in the provision estimate, as well as changes in estimates. Changes in estimates are capitalised or 

reversed against the relevant asset. If a decrease in the liability exceeds the carrying amount of the asset, the excess is 

recognised immediately in profit or loss. The present value of environmental disturbances created are capitalised to mining 

assets against an increase in the environmental rehabilitation obligation. 

Rehabilitation projects undertaken, included in the estimates are charged to the provision as incurred. The cost of ongoing 

current programmes to prevent and control environmental disturbances is charged against income as incurred. The 

unwinding of the discount due to the passage of time is recognised as finance cost, and the capitalised cost is amortised 

over the remaining lives of the mines. 
      

Figures in million - SA rand   Notes 2015 2014 2013 

Balance at beginning of the year    1 759.6  1 660.7  1 739.1 

Interest charge1    138.3  131.4  92.7 

Payment of environmental rehabilitation obligation    (0.3)  (10.9)  (10.5) 

Change in estimates2  10  (317.9)  (21.6)  (160.6) 

Balance at end of the year    1 579.7  1 759.6  1 660.7 

1 The provision is calculated based on the discount rates of 9.2% - 10.2% (2014: 7.2% – 8.8% and 2013: 7.2% – 8.2%). 
2 Changes in estimates are defined as changes in reserves and corresponding changes in life of mine, changes in discount rates, and 

changes in laws and regulations governing environmental matters. 

The Company’s mining operations are required by law to undertake rehabilitation works as part of their ongoing operations. 

The Company makes contributions into environmental rehabilitation obligation funds (refer to note 13) and holds 

guarantees to fund the estimated costs. 
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22.  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 

ACCOUNTING POLICY 

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 

effective interest method. 

      Figures in million - SA rand    2015 2014 2013 

Trade creditors    243.5  251.9  295.7 

Accruals and other creditors    650.6  643.0  644.8 

Payroll creditors    721.8  628.3  369.1 

Leave pay accrual    445.7  401.7  375.4 

Other    15.9  7.4  3.1 

Total trade and other payables    2 077.5  1 932.3  1 688.1 
 

23.  CASH GENERATED BY OPERATIONS 
      

Figures in million - SA rand   Notes 2015 2014 2013 

Profit for the year     1 760.6  2 111.5  1 523.7 

Royalties  8.1  383.9  422.1  414.6 

Mining and income tax  8.2  496.4  848.3  284.1 

Investment income    (242.2)  (172.6)  (149.6) 

Finance expense  5  396.8  328.8  419.4 

Profit before interest, royalties and tax    2 795.5  3 538.1  2 492.2 

Non-cash and other adjusting items:      

Amortisation and depreciation  4  2 915.1  2 921.7  3 083.4 

Share-based payments  6  247.4  368.8  258.8 

Loss on financial instruments    56.0  82.1  4.6 

Gain on foreign exchange differences    (4.2)  (8.8)  (4.2) 

Net loss on derecognition of financial guarantee asset and liability  14.3  158.3  -  - 

Impairments  7  -  504.4  821.0 

Reversal of impairment    -  (474.1)  - 

Loss on loss of control of subsidiary    -  -  113.6 

Other    (49.0)  (4.7)  (10.8) 

Total cash generated by operations    6 119.1  6 927.5  6 758.6 
 

 

24.  CHANGE IN WORKING CAPITAL 
      

Figures in million - SA rand    2015 2014 2013 

Inventories    (25.5)  (15.8)  0.1 

Trade, related and other receivables    (1 320.3)  (927.0)  471.7 

Trade, related and other payables    221.7  737.2  282.2 

Total change in working capital    (1 124.1)  (205.6)  754.0 
 

  

25.  ROYALTIES AND TAX PAID 

25.1 Royalties paid 

      Figures in million - SA rand    2015 2014 2013 

Royalties payable at beginning of the year    12.7  240.0  74.4 

Royalties  8.1  383.9  422.1  414.6 

Royalties paid    (372.7)  (649.4)  (249.0) 

Royalties payable at end of the year    23.9  12.7  240.0 

25.2 Tax paid 
      

Figures in million - SA rand   Notes 2015 2014 2013 

Tax payable at beginning of the year    67.9  531.1  12.4 

Current tax  8.2  681.5  872.7  798.7 

Tax paid    (643.4)  (1 335.9)  (280.0) 

Tax payable at end of the year   106.0 67.9 531.1 
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26.  COMMITMENTS 
      

Figures in million - SA rand    2015 2014 2013 

Capital expenditure      

– authorised    2 153.5  3 298.9  4 206.3 

Kloof    1 307.7  1 851.0  1 847.6 

Driefontein    725.5  1 177.1  1 387.1 

Beatrix    120.3  270.8  965.0 

Other    -  -  6.6 

– contracted for    262.5  316.4  286.9 

Other guarantees    55.5  55.5  4.1 
 

Commitments will be funded from internal sources and to the extent necessary from borrowings. This expenditure primarily 

relates to hostel upgrades, mining activities and infrastructure. 

27.  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES 

Contingencies can be either possible assets or possible liabilities arising from past events which, by their nature, will only 

be resolved when one or more future events not wholly within the control of the Company occur or fail to occur or for 

contingent liabilities where a present obligation arising from a past event exists but is not recognised because either it is 

not probable that an out-flow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the 

amount of the obligation cannot be determined with sufficient reliability. The assessment of such contingencies inherently 

involves the exercise of significant judgement and estimates of the outcome of future events. 

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTHCARE SERVICES 

The Company provides occupational healthcare services to its employees through its existing facilities at the various 

operations. There is a risk that the cost of providing such services could increase in future, depending upon changes in the 

nature of underlying legislation and the profile of employees. Any such increased cost cannot be quantified. The costs are 

however also mitigated by advances in technology relating to occupational health. The Company is monitoring 

developments in this regard. 

The principal health risks associated with Sibanye's mining operations in South Africa arise from occupational exposure to 

silica dust, noise, heat and certain hazardous chemicals. The most significant occupational diseases affecting Sibanye's 

workforce include lung diseases (such as silicosis, tuberculosis, a combination of the two and chronic obstructive airways 

disease (COAD), as well as noise induced hearing loss. The Occupational Diseases in Mines and Works Act, 78 of 1973, 

(ODMWA), governs the compensation paid to mining employees who contract certain illnesses, such as silicosis. The 

South African Constitutional Court has ruled that a claim for compensation under ODMWA does not prevent an employee 

from seeking compensation from its employer in a civil action under common law (either as individuals or as a class). While 

issues, such as negligence and causation, need to be proved on a case-by-case basis, it is possible that such ruling could 

expose Sibanye to individual or class action claims related to occupational hazards and diseases (including silicosis). If 

Sibanye were to face a significant number of such claims and the claims were suitably established against it, the payments 

of compensation for the claims could have a material adverse effect on Sibanye’s results of operations and financial 

position. In addition, Sibanye may incur significant additional costs arising out of these issues, including costs relating to 

the payment of fees, levies or other contributions in respect of compensatory or other funds established (if any), and 

expenditures arising out of its efforts to resolve any outstanding claims or other potential action. 

On 21 August 2012, a court application was served on a group of respondents that included Sibanye (the August 

Respondents). On 21 December 2012, a further court application was issued and was formally served on a number of 

respondents, including Sibanye (the December Respondents) and, again on 10 January 2013, both the August 

Respondents and the December Respondents (together the Respondents), on behalf of current and former mine workers, 

and their dependants, of, amongst others, Sibanye, and who allegedly contracted silicosis and/or other occupational lung 

diseases (OLD) (the Class). The court application of 21 August 2012 and 21 December 2012 are together referred to 

below as the Applications. 

Sibanye filed a notice of its intention to oppose the applications and its attorneys to defend the claims. 
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These Applications requested that the court, 

1. As a first phase, to certify a class action to be instituted by the applicants on behalf of the class, as defined. 

2. As a second phase to possibly split the class, as defined into smaller classes based on common legal and factual 

issues. The Respondents are of the view that the definition of the class in the first phase and the proposed process 

involving the second phase are contrary to South African legal precedent. 

3. In the last phase, bring an action wherein they will attempt to hold the respondents liable for silicosis and other OLD 

and resultant consequences.  

The Applications do not identify the number of claims that may be instituted against the Respondents or the quantum of 

damages that the applicants may seek. 

The Applications were heard during the weeks of 12 and 19 October 2015. Judgement is expected to be handed down 

during the first quarter of 2016. Anglo American South Africa, AngloGold Ashanti, Gold Fields, Harmony and Sibanye 

announced in November 2014 that they have formed a gold mining industry working group to address issues relating to the 

compensation and medical care for OLD in the gold mining industry in South Africa. Essentially, the companies are 

seeking a comprehensive and sustainable solution which deals both with the legacy compensation issues and future legal 

frameworks which, while being fair to employees, also ensures the future sustainability of companies in the industry. 

The companies have engaged all stakeholders on these matters, including government, organised labour, other mining 

companies and legal representatives of claimants who have filed legal suits against the companies. These legal 

proceedings are being defended. 

At this stage, Sibanye can neither quantify the potential liability from the action as the application is currently for 

certification of a class (and possibly, subsequent classes) nor can the length of time until finalisation be estimated.  

POST CLOSURE WATER MANAGEMENT LIABILITY 

The Company has identified a minor risk of potential long-term Acid Mine Drainage (AMD), on certain of its operations. 

AMD relates to the acidification and contamination of naturally occurring water resources by pyrite-bearing ore contained in 

underground mines and in rock dumps, tailings dams and pits on the surface. The Company has not been able to reliably 

determine the financial impact that AMD might have on the Company, nor the timing of possible out flow, however, the 

Company has adopted a proactive approach by initiating projects such as Sibanye Amanzi (long-term water management 

strategy), the acquisition and development of innovative treatment technologies; and the development of regional mine 

closure models to predict water quality impacts. The Company operates a comprehensive water quality monitoring 

program, including bio-monitoring, as an early detection of potential AMD. 

28.  EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE 

There were no events that could have a material impact on the financial results of the Company after 31 December 2015, 

other than those disclosed below. 

FINAL DIVIDEND DECLARED 

On 24 February 2016 a final dividend in respect of the six months ended 31 December 2015 of 90 SA cents per share was 

approved by the Board, resulting in a total dividend of 100 SA cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2015. This 

dividend is not reflected in these financial statements. The final dividend will be subject to Dividend Withholding Tax. 

AQUARIUS ACQUISITION 

On 6 October 2015 Sibanye announced a cash offer of US$0.195 per share for the entire issued share capital of Aquarius 

(the Aquarius Transaction), valuing Aquarius at US$294 million. On 18 January 2016 at the special general meeting of 

Aquarius, the requisite majority of Aquarius shareholders approved the transaction, whereby Sibanye will acquire all of the 

shares of Aquarius. On 16 March 2016, the suspensive condition to obtain competition commission approval was met for 

the Aquarius acquisition. Sibanye and Aquarius will now proceed to fulfil the final conditions precedent, in accordance with 

the Implementation Agreement.  
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THE RUSTENBURG OPERATIONS ACQUISITION 

On 9 September 2015 Sibanye announced that it entered into written agreements with Rustenburg Platinum Mines Limited 

(RPM), a wholly owned subsidiary of Anglo American Platinum Limited to acquire the Bathopele, Siphumelele (including 

Khomanani), and Thembelani (including Khuseleka) mining operations, two concentrating plants, an on-site chrome 

recovery plant, the Western Limb Tailings Retreatment Plant, associated surface infrastructure and related assets and 

liabilities on a going concern basis (the Rustenburg Operations) (the Rustenburg Operations Transaction). 

The purchase consideration comprises an upfront payment of R1.5 billion in cash or shares at the closing of the 

Rustenburg Operation Transaction (Closing) and a deferred payment calculated as being equal to 35% of the distributable 

free cash flow generated by the Rustenburg Operations over a six year period from the later of Closing or 1 January 2017 

(Deferred Payment), subject to a minimum payment of R3.0 billion. In addition to the Deferred Payment, which allows for a 

favourably extended payment period; should, the Rustenburg Operations generate negative distributable free cash flows in 

either 2016, 2017 or 2018, RPM will be required to pay up to R267 million per annum to ensure that the free cash flow for 

the relevant year is equal to zero.  

On 18 January 2016 at the shareholders meeting of Sibanye, the Sibanye shareholders approved the proposed 

Rustenburg Operations Transaction by voting in favour of the various resolutions to give effect to the Rustenburg 

Operations Transaction. 

On 16 March 2016, the suspensive condition to obtain competition commission approval was met for the Rustenburg 

Operations acquisition. 

The Rustenburg Operations Transaction is still subject to the fulfilment of the following conditions precedent and is likely to 

be concluded during the second half of 2016: 

 the granting on or before 30 June 2017 of consent in terms of section 11 of the Mineral and Petroleum Resources 

Development Act for the sale of the mining right and prospecting right pursuant to the Rustenburg Operations 

Transaction. 
 

29.  FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

ACCOUNTING POLICY 

Financial instruments recognised in the statement of financial position include cash and cash equivalents, investments, 

trade and other receivables, borrowings, trade and other payables and derivative financial instruments. 

The Company initially recognises loans and receivables on the date they originate. All other financial assets (including 

assets designated at fair value through profit or loss) are recognised initially on trade date, which is the date that the 

Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The Company derecognises a financial asset 

when the contractual rights to the cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of the 

ownership of the financial asset are transferred. The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual 

obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired. Any interest in such transferred financial asset that is created or retained 

by the Company is recognised as a separate asset or liability. The particular recognition and measurement methods 

adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each item. 

A financial asset not classified at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether 

there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if there is objective evidence of impairment as a 

result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and those event(s) had an impact on the 

estimated future cash flows of that asset, that can be estimated reliably. Impairment losses are recognised through profit or 

loss. 

On derecognition of a financial asset or liability, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset or liability and the 

sum of the consideration received and cumulative gains recognised in equity is recognised in profit or loss. 

Refer to the relevant notes for the accounting policies of the following financial assets and financial l iabilities: 

 Environmental rehabilitation obligation funds 

 Financial guarantee 

 Trade and other receivables 

 Cash and cash equivalents 

 Borrowings 

 Trade and other payables 
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The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instrument: 

 Trade and other receivables/payables, cash and cash equivalents and financial guarantee asset and liability 

The carrying amounts approximate fair values due to the short maturity of these instruments. 

 Investments and environmental rehabilitation obligation funds 

The fair value of publicly traded instruments is based on quoted market values. The environmental rehabilitation 

obligation funds are stated at fair value based on the nature of the funds’ investments. 

 Borrowings 

The fair value of borrowings approximates its carrying amounts as the impact of credit risk is included in the 

measurement of carrying amounts. 

 Financial instruments 

The fair value of financial instruments is estimated based on ruling market prices, volatilities and interest rates at 

31 December 2015. All derivatives are carried on the statement of financial position at fair value. 

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments: 

Level 1: unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical asset or liabilities; 

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices in level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or 

indirectly (derived from prices); and 

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

             Carrying value Fair Value 

Figures in million - SA Rand   

Fair 

value 

through 

profit or 

loss 

Loans 

and 

other  

receivables 

Available 

for sale 

Other 

financial 

liabilities Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

31 December 2015           

Financial assets           

Measured at fair value:           

- Environmental rehabilitation 

obligation funds 

 

 2 004.0  -  -  -  2 004.0  2 004.0  -  -  2 004.0 

Financial liabilities           

Not measured at fair value:           

- Borrowings   -  -  -  1 961.6  1 961.6     

31 December 2014           

Financial assets           

Not measured at fair value:           

- Financial guarantee asset   -  282.6  -  -  282.6     

Measured at fair value:           

- Environmental rehabilitation 

obligation funds 

 

 1 810.1  -  -  -  1 810.1  1 810.1  -  -  1 810.1 

Financial liabilities           

Not measured at fair value:           

- Financial guarantee liability   -  -  -  197.0  197.0     

- Borrowings   -  -  -  1 979.5  1 979.5     

31 December 2013           

Financial assets           

Not measured at fair value:           

- Financial guarantee asset   -  290.2  -  -  290.2     

Measured at fair value:           

- Environmental rehabilitation 

obligation funds 

 

 1 588.1  -  -  -  1 588.1  1 588.1  -  -  1 588.1 

Financial liabilities           

Not measured at fair value:           

- Financial guarantee liability   -  -  -  206.6  206.6     

- Borrowings   -  -  -  1 990.9  1 990.9     

Environmental rehabilitation obligation funds 

Comprises interest-bearing short-term investments valued using quoted market prices. 
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30.  RISK MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES 

In the normal course of its operations, the Company is exposed to market risks, including commodity price, foreign 

currency, interest rate, liquidity and credit risk associated with underlying assets, liabilities and anticipated transactions. In 

order to manage these risks, the Company has developed a comprehensive risk management process to facilitate control 

and monitoring of these risks. 

CONTROLLING AND MANAGING RISK IN THE COMPANY 

Sibanye has policies in areas such as counterparty exposure, hedging practices and prudential limits which have been 

approved by Sibanye's Board of Directors (the Board). Management of financial risk is centralised at Sibanye’s treasury 

department (Treasury), which acts as the interface between Sibanye’s Operations and counterparty banks. Treasury 

manages financial risk in accordance with the policies and procedures established by the Board and Executive Committee. 

The Board has approved dealing limits for money market, foreign exchange and commodity transactions, which Treasury 

is required to adhere to. Among other restrictions, these limits describe which instruments may be traded and demarcate 

open position limits for each category as well as indicating counterparty credit-related limits. The dealing exposure and 

limits are checked and controlled each day and reported to the CFO. 

The objective of Treasury is to manage all financial risks arising from the Company’s business activities in order to protect 

profit and cash flows. Treasury activities of Sibanye and its subsidiaries are guided by the Treasury Policy, the Treasury 

Framework as well as domestic and international financial market regulations. Treasury activities are currently performed 

within the Treasury Framework with appropriate resolutions from the Board, which are reviewed and approved annually by 

the Audit Committee. 

The financial risk management objectives of the Company are defined as follows: 

 Liquidity risk management: the objective is to ensure that the Company is able to meet its short-term commitments 

through the effective and efficient management of cash and usage of credit facilities. 

 Currency risk management: the objective is to maximise the Company’s profits by minimising currency fluctuations. 

 Funding risk management: the objective is to meet funding requirements timeously and at competitive rates by 

adopting reliable liquidity management procedures. 

 Investment risk management: the objective is to achieve optimal returns on surplus funds. 

 Interest rate risk management: the objective is to identify opportunities to prudently manage interest rate exposures. 

 Counterparty exposure: the objective is to only deal with approved counterparts that are of a sound financial standing 

and who have an official credit rating. The Company is limited to a maximum investment of 2.5% of the financial 

institutions’ equity, which is dependent on the institutions’ credit rating. The credit rating used is Fitch Ratings’ short-

term credit rating for financial institutions. 

 Commodity price risk management: commodity risk management takes place within limits and with counterparts as 

approved in the treasury framework. 

 Operational risk management: the objective is to implement controls to adequately mitigate the risk of error and/or 

fraud. 

 Banking relations management: the objective is to maintain relationships with credible financial institutions and 

ensure that all contracts and agreements related to risk management activities are co-ordinated and consistent 

throughout the Company and that they comply where necessary with all relevant regulatory and statutory requirements. 

CREDIT RISK 

Credit risk represents risk that an entity will suffer a financial loss due to the other party of a financial instrument not 

discharging its obligation. 

The Company has reduced its exposure to credit risk by dealing with a number of counterparties. The Company approves 

these counterparties according to its risk management policy and ensures that they are of good credit quality. 

Trade receivables are reviewed on a regular basis and an allowance for impairment is raised when they are not considered 

recoverable. 
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The combined maximum credit risk exposure is as follows: 

        Figures in million - SA rand     Notes 2015 2014 2013 

Environmental rehabilitation obligation funds    13  2 004.0  1 810.1  1 588.1 

Trade and other receivables    16  961.6  492.2  610.8 

Cash and cash equivalents    17  118.4  83.4  1 132.7 

Financial guarantee asset    14.1  -  282.6  290.2 

Trade receivables comprise banking institutions purchasing gold bullion. These receivables are in a sound financial 

position and no impairment has been recognised. Trade and other receivables above exclude VAT and pre-payments. 

Receivables that are past due but not impaired total R3.2 million (2014: R16.6 million and 2013: R7.5 million). At 

31 December 2015, receivables of R1.5 million (2014: R0.2 million and 2013: R7.4 million) are considered impaired and 

are provided for. 

Concentration of credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and non-current assets is considered minimal due to the 

abovementioned investment risk management and counterparty exposure risk management policies. 

LIQUIDITY RISK 

In the ordinary course of business, the Company receives cash proceeds from its operations and is required to fund 

working capital and capital expenditure requirements. The cash is managed to ensure surplus funds are invested to 

maximise returns whilst ensuring that capital is safeguarded to the maximum extent possible by investing only with top 

financial institutions. 

Uncommitted borrowing facilities are maintained with several banking counterparties to meet the Company’s normal and 

contingency funding requirements. 

The following are contractually due, undiscounted cash flows resulting from maturities of financial liabilities including 

interest payments: 
        

Figures in million - SA rand   

  

Total 

Within one 

year 

Between 

one and 

five years 

After five 

years 

31 December 2015        

Trade and other payables     1 631.8  1 631.8  -  - 

Borrowings1        

- Capital     1 963.6  1 963.6  -  - 

- Interest     168.7  168.7  -  - 

Total      3 764.1  3 764.1  -  - 

31 December 2014        

Trade and other payables     1 530.6  1 530.6  -  - 

Financial guarantee2     11 560.0  11 560.0  -  - 

Borrowings1        

- Capital     1 984.6  500.0  1 484.6  - 

- Interest     202.3  124.3  78.0  - 

Total      15 277.5  13 714.9  1 562.6  - 

31 December 2013        

Trade and other payables     1 312.7  1 312.7  -  - 

Financial guarantee2     10 340.0  10 340.0  -  - 

Related-party payables     322.2  322.2  -  - 

Borrowings1        

- Capital     2 000.0  500.0  1 500.0  - 

- Interest     334.8  153.6  181.2  - 

Total      14 309.7  12 628.5  1 681.2  - 

1 Borrowings – JIBAR at 31 December 2015 adjusted by specific facility agreement of 2.75%. 
2 Financial guarantee relates to Sibanye’s gross exposure in respect of the Gold Fields group’s borrowings at 31 December 2014 and 2013. 

MARKET RISK 

The Company is exposed to market risks, including foreign currency, commodity price, equity securities price and interest 

rate risk associated with underlying assets, liabilities and anticipated transactions. Following periodic evaluation of these 

exposures, the Company may enter into derivative financial instruments to manage some of these exposures. 
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SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS 

The sensitivity analysis shows the effects of reasonable possible changes of relevant risk variables on profit or loss or 

shareholders’ equity. The Company is exposed to commodity price, currency and interest rate risks. The effects are 

determined by relating the reasonable possible change in the risk variable to the balance of financial instruments at period 

end date. 

The amounts generated from the sensitivity analysis are forward-looking estimates of market risks assuming certain 

adverse or favourable market conditions occur. Actual results in the future may differ materially from those projected 

results and therefore should not be considered a projection of likely future events and gains/losses. 

FOREIGN CURRENCY SENSITIVITY 

General and policy 

In the ordinary course of business, the Company enters into transactions, such as gold sales, denominated in foreign 

currencies, primarily US dollar. Although this exposes the Company to transaction and translation exposure from 

fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, the Company does not generally hedge this exposure, although it could be 

considered for significant expenditures based in foreign currency or those items which have long lead times to produce or 

deliver. Also, the Company on occasion undertakes currency hedging to take advantage of favourable short-term 

fluctuations in exchange rates when management believes exchange rates are at unsustainably high levels. 

Currency risk only exists on account of financial instruments being denominated in a currency that is not the functional 

currency and being of a monetary nature. This included the financial guarantee (refer to note 14). 

Foreign currency hedging experience 

As at 31 December 2015, 2014 and 2013 there were no material foreign currency contract positions.  

During the years ended 31 December 2015, 2014 and 2013, no forward cover was taken out to cover various 

commitments of Sibanye’s operations. 

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis 

Sibanye’s operations are all located in South Africa and its revenues are equally sensitive to changes in the US dollar gold 

price and the rand/US dollar exchange rate (the exchange rate). Depreciation of the rand against the US dollar results in 

Sibanye’s revenues and operating margin increasing. Conversely, should the rand appreciate against the US dollar, 

revenues and operating margins would decrease. The impact on profitability of any change in the exchange rate can be 

substantial. Furthermore, the exchange rates obtained when converting US dollars to rand are set by foreign exchange 

markets over which Sibanye has no control. The relationship between currencies and commodities, which includes the 

gold price, is complex and changes in exchange rates can influence commodity prices and vice versa. 

 A sensitivity analysis of the mark-to-market valuation has not been performed as there were no material foreign currency 

contracts as at 31 December 2015, 2014 and 2013. 

COMMODITY PRICE SENSITIVITY 

Gold 

The market price of gold has a significant effect on the results of operations of the Company and the ability of the 

Company to pay dividends and undertake capital expenditures. The gold price has historically fluctuated widely and is 

affected by numerous industry factors over which the Company does not have any control. The aggregate effect of these 

factors on the gold price, all of which are beyond the control of the Company, is impossible for the Company to predict. 

COMMODITY PRICE HEDGING POLICY 

Gold 

As a general rule, the Company does not enter into forward sales, derivatives or other hedging arrangements to establish a 

price in advance for future gold production. Gold hedging could, however, be considered in future under one or more of the 

following circumstances: to protect cash flows at times of significant capital expenditure; financing projects or to safeguard 

the viability of higher cost operations. 
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To the extent that it enters into commodity hedging arrangements, the Company seeks to use different counterparty banks 

consisting of local and international banks to spread risk. None of the counterparties is affiliated with, or related to parties 

of the Company. 

Commodity price hedging experience 

As at 31 December 2015, 2014 and 2013 no commodity price derivative instruments were entered into.  

Commodity price contract position 

As of 31 December 2015, 2014 and 2013, Sibanye had no outstanding commodity price contracts. 

INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY 

General 

As the Company has no significant interest-bearing assets, the Company’s income and operating cash flows are 

substantially independent of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s interest rate risk arises from long-term 

borrowings. 

As of 31 December 2015, the Company’s total borrowings amounted to R1,961.6 million (2014: R1,979.5 million and 2013: 

R1,990.9 million). The Company generally does not undertake any specific action to cover its exposure to interest rate risk, 

although it may do so in specific circumstances. Refer to note 20 for all the borrowings and the relevant interest rates per 

facility. 

The portion of Sibanye’s interest-bearing borrowings at period end that is exposed to interest rate fluctuations is 

R1,961.6 million (2014: R1,979.5 million and 2013: R1,990.9 million). This debt is normally rolled for periods between one 

and three months and is therefore exposed to the rate changes in this period. The total borrowings at the end of the period 

is exposed to changes in the JIBAR rate. The relevant interest rates for each facility are described in note 20. 

The table below summarises the effect of a change in finance expense on the Company’s profit or loss had JIBAR differed 

as indicated. The analysis is based on the assumption that the applicable interest rate increased/decreased with all other 

variables held constant. 

Interest rate sensitivity analysis 

        

  Change in interest expense for a change in interest rate 

Figures in million - SA rand   -1.5% -1.0% -0.5% 0.5% 1.0% 1.5% 

Sensitivity to interest rates:        

31 December 2015        

- JIBAR   35.4  23.6  11.8  (11.8)  (23.6)  (35.4) 

Change in finance expense   35.4  23.6  11.8  (11.8)  (23.6)  (35.4) 

31 December 2014        

- JIBAR   31.5  21.0  10.5  (10.5)  (21.0)  (31.5) 

Change in finance expense   31.5  21.0  10.5  (10.5)  (21.0)  (31.5) 

31 December 2013        

- JIBAR   54.6  36.4  18.2  (18.2)  (36.4)  (54.6) 

Change in finance expense   54.6  36.4  18.2  (18.2)  (36.4)  (54.6) 
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31.  RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Sibanye entered into related-party transactions with Rand Refinery during the year as detailed below. The transactions 

with these related parties are generally conducted with terms comparable to transactions with third parties, however in 

certain circumstances such as related-party loans, the transactions were not at arm’s length. 

For key management remuneration, see Accountability–Remuneration report.  

RAND REFINERY 

Rand Refinery, in which Sibanye holds a 33.1% interest, has an agreement with the Company whereby it refines all the 

Company’s gold production. No dividends were received during the years ended 31 December 2015, 2014 and 2013. For 

the year ending 31 December 2015, the Company paid refining fees to Rand Refinery and received interest, refer to note 

12 for the loan to Rand Refinery. 

The table below details the transactions and balances between the Company and its related-parties: 
        

Figures in million - SA rand     Notes 2015 2014 2013 

Interest received from Rand Refinery      37.3  1.2  - 

Income from services rendered to Gold Fields 

group companies         

Medical services      -  -  19.0 

Expenditure      (657.6)  (977.2)  (597.0) 

Management fees paid to Gold Fields Group Services      -  -  (12.5) 

Refining fees paid to Rand Refinery      (30.8)  (30.6)  (12.1) 

Administration fees paid to Sibanye Gold Shared 

Services      (121.4)  (176.5)  (169.3) 

Security fees paid to Sibanye Gold Protection Services      (253.9)  (265.8)  (251.7) 

Training fees paid to Sibanye Gold Academy      (251.5)  (258.6)  (56.0) 

Medical fees paid to St Helena Hospital      -  (245.7)  (95.4) 

Loan receivable from associate      37.2  55.1  - 

Rand Refinery      363.7  384.6  - 

Impairment of Rand Refinery loan      (329.5)  (329.5)  - 

Living Gold Proprietary Limited      3.0  -  - 

Loan receivable from subsidiaries      5 298.6  4 974.6  - 

Newshelf 1114      2 774.5  2 728.5  - 

Rand Uranium      2 291.6  2 021.6  - 

St Helena Hospital Proprietary Limited      22.0  22.0  - 

Witwatersrand Consolidated Gold Resources 

Proprietary Limited      198.3  198.3  - 

Other subsidiaries      12.2  4.2  - 

Trade receivables from related parties      1 926.4  1 206.3  140.5 

Sibanye Gold Shared Services      1 914.6  1 168.0  137.1 

Other subsidiaries      11.8  38.3  3.4 

Trade payables to related parties      (591.1)  (514.6)  (21.6) 

Sibanye Gold Academy      (15.1)  (21.0)  (8.4) 

Sibanye Gold Shared Services      (571.3)  (473.9)  - 

Other subsidiaries      (4.7)  (19.7)  (13.2) 

Loan payable to subsidiaries      (754.1)  (752.0)  (300.6) 

Sibanye Gold Protection Services      (20.0)  (20.0)  - 

Sibanye Gold Shared Services      (329.0)  (334.0)  (300.0) 

Ezulwini      (396.2)  (389.1)  - 

Other subsidiaries      (8.9)  (8.9)  (0.6) 
 

 

  



NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 

 

  Sibanye Gold Company Financial Statements 2015 61 
 

 

32.  CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

The Company’s primary objective with regards to managing its capital is to ensure that there is sufficient capital available 

to support the funding requirements of the Company, including capital expenditure, in a way that: optimises the cost of 

capital; maximises shareholders’ returns; and ensures that the Company remains in a sound financial position. 

There were no changes to the Company’s overall capital management approach during the current year. 

The Company manages and makes adjustments to the capital structure as and when borrowings mature or as and when 

funding is required. This may take the form of raising equity, market or bank debt or hybrids thereof. Opportunities in the 

market are also monitored closely to ensure that the most efficient funding solutions are implemented. 

The Company monitors capital using the ratio of net external debt to earnings (operating profit) before interest, taxes, 

depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA), but does not set absolute limits for this ratio. The Company is comfortable with a 

ratio of net debt to EBITDA of one times or lower. 

        Figures in million - SA rand     Notes 2015 2014 2013 

Borrowings1    20  1 961.6  1 979.5  1 990.9 

Cash and cash equivalents2    17  118.4  83.4  1 132.7 

Net debt3      1 843.2  1 896.1  858.2 

EBITDA4      6 340.5  7 279.8  7 357.9 

Net debt to EBITDA (ratio)      0.29  0.26  0.12 
1 Borrowings excludes related party loans. 
2 Net debt excludes related party loans. 
3 EBITDA is net operating profit before amortisation and depreciation. 

33.  LIQUIDITY 

The Company’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by R2,439.7 million as at 31 December 2015 (2014: 

R1,846.1 million). Current liabilities at 31 December 2015 includes the current portion of borrowings of R1,961.6 million 

which is the bi-annual repayment due and payable in June 2016 and the final settlement due and payable 

in December 2016.  

Sibanye generated cash from operating activities of R3,102.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2015. The Company 

has committed unutilised debt facilities of R6.2 billion at 31 December 2015.  

The directors believe that the cash generated by its operations and the remaining balance of the Company’s revolving 

credit facility will enable the Company to continue to meet its obligations as they fall due. 
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